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Fiscal Year 2002 was a pivotal year in Anacomp’s history. We achieved, and in many cases exceeded, our strategic objectives, both
in terms of financial performance and in the delivery of superior products and services to our customers. We accomplished this by
focusing on the strengths of our business and engaging in activities to optimize our emerging product and service offerings.

7 January 2003

As the timeline on the inside flap of our 2002 Annual Report illustrates, Anacomp has been providing valuable information
management and related services to our loyal customers for the past 35 years. During this time, we have kept abreast of advances

in information technology, yet our commitment to our customers and our valued shareholders has remained constant. Our continued
progress is the result of our commitment to embrace change, while upholding the values and core competencies that have sustained
our business.

Anacomp started offering computer-related services as a private U.S. company in 1968. Today, we are a public company with a global
presence, doing business in almost 70 countries around the world. Our product and service offering mix has changed over the years,
but our experience in managing large volumes of critical documents and a broad range of vital resources has provided us with
unparalleled expertise. Our information outsourcing services span virtually every media — including microfiche, laser printing,
scanning, CD and Web presentment — and our maintenance support and imaging/print solutions cover more than 55 manufacturers

of mass storage devices and high-speed output systems.

We completed our 2002 fiscal year on September 30, 2002. We successfully emerged from our financial restructuring on December
31, 2001 without the approximately $310 million debt that had encumbered the Company in the past. Despite very challenging
economic and business conditions in the world, our loyal employees worked hard to help us accomplish our strategic objectives.

Last year, Anacomp undertook several actions to reorganize our workforce, which included 1) combining our former Document
Solutions and Technical Services business units into one organization; 2) establishing an executive level position to oversee our
re-energized and integrated sales and marketing activities; and 3) creating a single support group for our growing Web Presentment
Service™ operations and field service functions. While the strategic benefits of this reorganization are still unfolding, we have
realized substantial efficiencies and synergies to date.

We were also successful in selling several businesses that were not aligned with our strategy. This included our operations in
Switzerland, which we divested in October 2002. We will continue to review our operations and infrastructure on an ongoing basis
and take appropriate corrective actions as needed.

In addition, we were able to achieve growth in our Multi Vendor Services (MVS) and Web Presentment Service offerings which,
combined, are the flagship for the Company’s future growth. In our MVS business, we are able to realize significant synergies by
leveraging our existing Computer Output to Microfilm (COM) work force and, for the year, MVS revenues accounted for 52% of all
our maintenance revenues. Meanwhile, our Web Presentment Service — which provides customers with access to critical documents
on a 24X7 basis via the Internet or private access lines — continues to gain in popularity with companies that have highly regulated
document retention and control requirements.

Finally, in the nine months after emerging from our restructuring on December
31, 2001, we demonstrated that Anacomp is a healthy business, generating
nearly $800,000 in pre-tax income during that period. These results, together
with our existing cash, enabled us to apply $23.1 million in excess cash to
reduce substantially our borrowings under our revolving line of credit over the
same period. As a result, our senior debt is now a very manageable obligation.

While challenges always lie ahead, Anacomp had a very successful Fiscal Year
2002, and we look forward to 2003. We remain committed to meeting our
customers’ needs by providing secure, superior quality, value-added services
that enable our customers to access critical documents where and when they
need them. Thank you for your support over the last year. We are committed
to continuing to build a stronger, and better, Anacomp.

Jeff Crimen

Jeff Cramer
President and CEO, Anacomp, Inc.




Company Milesiones

A decade at a time. ..

1968 = 1977
° A trio of Purdue University professors found
Anacomp® in Indiana.

* Anacomp becomes a public corporation and
pursues growth of its computer services
business through acquisition.

> The Company enters the field of Computer
Output to Microfilm (COM).

1978 = 1987

> Anacomp ranks as one of the top three COM
vendors in the U.S., with customers including
major banks, savings and loans, and
state/federal government agencies.

 Operating 35 data centers in major
metropolitan areas of the U.S., the Company
provides COM services to 4,000 customers.

* Anacomp further expands its document
delivery network, adding 24 data centers.

= Through the acquisition of the
DatagraphiX®business unit of General
Dynamics, the Company solidifies its
position as a world leader in COM equipment
and services.

° Anacomp enters the international
marketplace, with operations in the UK,
France, West Germany, Belgium,

The Netherlands and Canada.

1988 = 1997

* The Company launches the XFP2000*,
the micrographics industry’s most advanced
imaging platform.

* Anacomp ranks as the world’s leading full-
service micrographics company.

= High-volume CD production systems and
services join the Company’s product offerings
through the acquisition of Data/Ware
Development.

The last five years...

1998 = 2002

° The acquisition of First Image strengthens
Anacomp’s leadership in document
management services.

* Anacomp establishes its corporate
headquarters in California.

> The Company expands its CD services and
digital imaging solutions into new regions
of Europe.

* Maintenance agreements with IBM
Corporation, Sony Electronics and Overland
Storage mark Anacomp’s entrance into the
Multi-Vendor Services (MVS) arena.

> The Company launches Internet Document
Services, providing document management
via the Web.

° Anacomp strengthens its focus on its core
document-management services business.

° The Company acquires Adesso Software
from Litton Industries, continuing to build
its digital document services capabilities.

* Leading industry analyst Gartner Group
names Anacomp one of the top vendors in
the integrated document archive and retrieval
systems (IDARS) market.

° The Company combines its Internet
Document Services with Adesso’s technology
and infrastructure to form docHarbor™, an
application service provider (ASP).

° Anacomp expands its maintenance
capabilities into the storage and networking
arenas, signing MVS agreements with Ancor,
Chaparral and nStor, among others.

° The Company restructures its DatagraphiX
business, discontinuing manufacturing of
new hardware systems and contract
manufacturing for third parties.

= Anacomp integrates its docHarbor business
unit into its Document Solutions business,
creating a new Web Presentment Services™
offering.

° The Company focuses on its growing Web
Presentment Service and MVS offerings.

» Anacomp reorganizes its worldwide
operations, integrating its two independent
business units into one.
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A nacomp®, Inc. provides comprehensive
information outsourcing, maintenance

support, and imaging and print solutions for
businesses and organizations around the
globe.

Headquartered in San Diego, Anacomp
operates more than 50 Data Centers in North
America and Western Europe and provides
maintenance support for more than 55
equipment manufacturers in 70 countries
either directly or through our worldwide
network of dealers and distributors.

Inclustry Leadersiip

Anacomp was founded in Indianapolis,
Indiana in 1968 as a local computer services
company. Today, more than 7,000 businesses
and organizations around the world,
including the majority of the Fortune 500,
rely on us to manage their documents and
provide service and support for their
information technology equipment.

In addition to launching our Web
Presentment Service®™ and Multi-Vendor
Services (MVS) in 1998, Anacomp has
remained the acknowledged leader in
Computer Output to Microfilm (COM)
systems and services.

Document Imaging Services

High-quality analog and digital scanning
services, featuring document capture,
conversion, indexing, archive and retrieval for
a wide variety of applications in a broad
range of formats.

Print & Micrographic Services
Comprehensive custom printing of reports,
forms, invoices, statements, checks and more
(Print Services), and safe, economical
information archiving for long-term storage
(Micrographic Services).

Business Continuity Services

On- and off-site information back-up,
overflow and standby production services to
protect against data loss and assure
continuous availability of vital documents.

Multi-Vendor Services & Support
Installation and maintenance of mass storage
devices and high-speed output systems,
including storage units, network routers/
converters, and high-volume laser scanning
and printing equipment.

Imaging and Print Systems & Supplies
Complete high-quality imaging and print
solutions, including both new and rebuilt
hardware, as well as associated software,
supplies and equipment.

Preduet/Service Cffierings
Anacomp offers a full range of products and
services to help businesses and organizations
reduce operating costs, improve productivity
and enhance their competitive position with
technology. From Financial Services to
Telecommunications, our client base spans
many industries, all with a common need for
caring for and communicating with their
customers.

Digital Document Services

Electronic management of business
documents that can be presented, retrieved
and archived using the Internet or private
networks via standard Web browsers (Web
Presentment Service), or with desktop access
via CD-R media or online network (CD
Services).

Cur Cemrniimenl

Anacomp is committed to providing secure,
superior quality, value-added services that
enable our customers and partners to access
critical documents where and when they need
them, while making the most of vital
physical, financial and human resources.
Qur entire North American organization has
received the prestigious ISO 9001:2000
certification, confirming our commitment to
quality management, customer service and
regulatory compliance.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

This Annual Report, including Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations”, contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
regarding our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar expressions or variations of such
words are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-
looking statements in this Annual Report. Additionally, statements concerning future matters such as our future
plans and operations, sales levels, liquidity needs, anticipated growth of the markets in which we operate, revenue
trends and other statements regarding matters that are not historical are forward-looking statements.

Although forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K reflect the good faith and judgment of
our management, such statements can only be based on facts and factors of which we are currently aware.
Consequently, forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties. Our actual results,
performance, achievements and other items contained in the forward-looking statements may differ materially
from those discussed in or anticipated by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute
to such differences in results and outcomes include without limitation those discussed under the heading “Risk
Factors” below, as well as those discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We encourage you to
not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements in order to
reflect any event or circumstance that may arise after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
encourage you to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
which attempt to address the risks and factors that may affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
important factors that could cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, to differ
materially from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by forward-looking
statements. Risks, uncertainties and other important factors include, among others:

general economic and business conditions;

industry trends and growth rates;

industry capacity;

competition;

future technology;

the continuing decline of the Computer Cutput to Microfiche (COM) business;
raw materials costs and availability;

currency fluctuations;

fluctuation in pension fund investment returns;

the loss of any significant customers or suppliers;

changes in business strategy or development plans;

litigation issues;

successful development of new products;

anticipated financial performance and contributions of our products and services;
availability, terms and deployment of capital;

ability to meet debt service obligations;

availability of qualified personnel;

changes in ownership;

changes in, or the failure or inability to comply with, government regulations; or
other factors referenced in this public filing.
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OVERVIEW

Anacomp®, Inc. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, "Anacomp" or the "Company") is a global provider
of information cutsourcing, maintenance support, and imaging and print solutions. Anacomp was incorporated in
Indiana in 1968 and has active international subsidiaries in Austria, Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Italy, the
Netherlands, Scandinavia and the United Kingdom. Anacomp’s headquarters are located at 15378 Avenue of
Science in San Diego, California 92128-3407, and the telephone number is (858) 716-34C0.

For nearly 35 years, Anacomp has provided a broad range of analog and digital archive and retrieval services and
systems to help companies manage and distribute their critical business documents. We are also one of the
world’s leading independent, vendor neutral providers of Multi-Vendor Services (MVS). We offer expert
installation and maintenance services for a broad array of third party equipment, such as mass storage devices and
high-speed output systems. In addition, we provide systems and related supplies and services to much of the
installed base of CCM (Computer Qutput to Microfilm) imaging systems worldwide through a combination of
direct sales, telemarketing and distributors. Anacomp was once the primary manufacturer for most of the base of
this installed equipment and today we provide “as new” systems to our customers in North America, Japan and
Europe. We also refurbish high-speed laser printers and provide maintenance support for a number of these
devices, as well as selling associated supplies.

We deliver our products and services to more than 7,000 businesses and organizations in 68 countries directly or
through our worldwide network of dealers and distributors. We have a large base of premier customers in the
banking, insurance and brokerage sectors, including approximately one half of the Fortune 500 companies. Our
informaticn outsourcing sales efforts are focused heavily on these three segments, each of which has substantial
and diverse document management needs. We are currently expanding our range of outsource services, adding
document imaging (scanning) services, printing services and e-mail archive capabilities to meet the demanding
requirements of these and other markets. By meeting our customers’ full range of information outsourcing needs
in this way, we expect to provide increased value and to maximize our business with each customer.

In previous years, our business results have been reported in two primary business units, Document Solutions and
Technical Services. In fiscal year 2002, these businesses were merged together in an effort to create synergy for
our business across product lines and to reduce operating costs. We believe our business offerings can be sold
more effectively through a single dedicated sales channel and that a number of operating efficiencies will be
realized by combining our sales, operating and support organizations. The majority of our business relates to
managing customer documents, supporting the devices these documents are captured or printed on, and providing
supplies for the same. We believe we can service our existing and future customers more effectively by
“bundling” an expanded list of services (e.g., Web viewing, CD Services, printing, scanning and long-term
archival storage). As a result we no longer report our operating results in separate business units.

Bankruptcy Reorganization

Cn October 19, 2001, we filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code, together with a prepackaged plan of reorganization (the “Plan”), with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the
Southern District of California. The U.S. Bankrupicy Court confirmed the Plan on December 10, 2001, and we
emerged from bankruptcy effective December 31, 2001.

The primary benefits of our bankruptcy were the elimination of $310 million of debt, related accrued interest of
$52.2 million and the related annual interest expense of approximately $34 million. Additionally, our credit
facility was amended such that we cured previous events of default and we continue to have the ability to borrow
under the credit facility.

Under the Plan, our publicly traded 10-7/8% senior subordinated notes, related accrued interest and existing
Anacomp common stock were canceled, and new common stock was issued. New Class A Common Stock was
distributed to the holders of the notes, as well as reserved for issuance as incentive compensation to Anacomp
personnel. New Class B Common Stock was issued and distributed to holders of previously existing Anacomp
common stock. Terms and conditions of the Class A and Class B Common Stock are identical, including voting
rights, dividends, when and if declared, and liquidation rights, subject to any preference of preferred stock as may




be issued in the furure. Preferred stock is authorized to be issued in one or more series with terms to be
established at the time of issuance by our Board of Directors.

In exchange for the notes totaling $310 million and related accrued interest totaling $52.3 million, holders of the
notes received 4,030,000 shares of new Class A Common Stock. Holders of previously existing common stock
received 4,034 shares of new Class B Common Stock. In addition, for each share of new Class B Common Stock
issued, these shareholders received 194.12 warrants. Each warrant is exercisable for a period of five years for
the purchase of one share of the new Class B Common Stock at an exercise price of $61.54 per share. As a
result, 783,077 warrants to purchase Class B Common Stock were issued.

Holders of Class A Common Stock own 99.9% of our equity and those holding Class B Common Stock own
0.1%.

Anacomp's financial results for fiscal 2002 reflect the continuing overall decline in the COM business, growth in
our Multi-Vendor Services and Web Presentment offerings, the effects of our financial restructuring and
associated debt elimination, and re-payment of a significant portion of the outstanding balance of our credit
facility. See Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”,
and the Notes to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information with respect to our
fiscal 2002 financial performance and liquidity.

Document Management Industry

The document management industry in which Anacomp conducts business provides businesses and organizations
with products and services for storing, distributing and accessing critical documents. Today, the rapid increase in
the number of documents generated in both commercial and non-commercial sectors, combined with the rapid
advance of digital technologies, is fueling growth in the industry. We estimate that the overall document
management and related services market has been growing by more than 20% annually since 2000 and that the
market may reach $6.6 billion in 2003. We believe that this anticipated growth is based primarily on the
following customer requirements:

Immediate Access to Information -- To react quickly and effectively to changing business conditions,
companies need ready access to information on their business and on their customers. They also need
to provide their customers with immediate access to their account information via the Web in order to
compete effectively in the financial marketplace,

Outsourcing Alternatives -- Businesses are increasingly looking to outsource non-core activities.
Document management has been identified as a good candidate for outsourcing. Most companies can
implement document management faster, more effectively and less expensively through third parties.
It is estimated that approximately 70% of businesses regularly use outsourcers. Anacomp is regarded
as an Application Service Provider (ASP) in the area of information outsourcing,

Application Focused Support -- Businesses are no longer content with generic document management
products or services; rather, they demand solutions that are tailored to the specific tasks their personnel
and customers perform, including the ability to have vital business information readily available in
customer interactions. To meet this need document management companies must focus on developing
expertise on particular business processes in selected industries,

Current Events - A fourth and most unfortunate factor, current events, have also begun to drive the
rapid adoption of document management systems. As a result of the terrorist attacks on September
11, 2001, businesses are concerned about being vulnerable to manmade disasters and are looking to
identify ways to manage critical information on their internal business processes and resources, their
suppliers and their customers. Financial institutions, reeling in the wake of numerous recent financial
failures and corporate misconduct, are being driven by new regulations to record all activity related
to their ongoing business. Newly issued HIPAA regulations, which affect the record keeping
requirements of all health insurance providers, are also pushing faster adoption of document
management technologies, including service-based offerings. The “current events” factor has only




had marginal impact on the document management market to date but could have a substantial effect
in the long-term.

Products and Services

Anacomp provides archive and retrieval services based upon the document accessibility, security and archival
requirements of our customers’ businesses. Utilizing our extensive infrastructure, a growing number of our
customers transmit their documents to our data and document service centers via our secure, high-speed, data
network. We offer three primary information outsourcing services: (1) we host customer documents on a server
and provide secure, high-speed access to them via standard Web browsers, (2) we convert customer documents to
industry standard formats and package them on Compact Disc-Recordable (CD-R) media with a viewer and
navigational tools and (3) we index these documents and capture them on microfiche or microfilm, a very stable,
economical, long-term storage alternative.

Anacomp’s maintenance support services are offered in North America and Europe primarily through a dedicated,
experienced organization of over 400 service professionals. We extend this service to approximately 50 countries
through our worldwide network of affiliated, certified service technicians. We support more than 85 hardware
manufacturers, resellers and distributors.

During fiscal year 2002, as a follow-on to our restructuring efforts, we focused on a number of items that we felt
were important to reaffirm Anacomp’s leadership position in the document management and related services
marketplace. The first step was to demonstrate that we had a valid business that could generate substantial cash
flow and operating income from continuing operations. We generated pre-tax income from continuing operations
in the nine months ended September 30, 2002 by managing costs closely and carefully evaluating investments in
our future business. Second, we examined our existing business to determine where our focus should be in order
to achieve positive results in fiscal year 2003. We reorganized our workforce by combining the field
organizations of Document Sclutions and Technical Services into one organization, which created: an executive
level position to oversee all sales and marketing activities; and a single support group for our data centers, Web
Presentment operations, field services operations and process quality. The net effect of these changes was to give
each of our sales associates full access to sell our entire product line, to introduce additional offerings and to
nurture synergies between the product lines by bundling our services and products for sale to our customers.

Our new business structure manages results along product lines distinguished primarily by technology usage. This
will enable us to focus more clearly on stabilizing declining revenues in mature product lines and to manage
revenue generation in moderate and higher growth technoiogy segments. Our overall revenues in fiscal year 2002
declined from $306 million to $242 million or 21%, primarily as a result of a 27% decrease in COM-related
businesses. Non-COM related revenues decreased by $6 million or 7% as a result of the sale of our Switzerland
operations. The Switzerland operations contributed approximately $14 million of non-COM revenue in fiscal year
2001.

CD Services. Anacomp offers industry-leading outsource services for storing, delivering and accessing documents
using the CD-R medium. This outsource service provides customers with an easy-to-use, high-capacity, portable,
standardized solution for the electronic distribution, access and storage of invoices, reports, statements, policies,
trade confirmations and other important documents. Since entering the emerging field of CD-based document
management in 1995, Anacomp has become one of the world’s largest providers of computer output to CD.
During fiscal year 2002, we provided over 1,100 customers with CD Services, with the majority of these
customers based in North America.

Cur CD Services revenues declined by $2 million or 7% in fiscal year 2002 after being a consistently strong
contributor to revenue growth in the past two years. CD revenues grew from $26.7 million or 7% of total
Company revenues in fiscal year 2000 to $30.1 million, or 10% of revenues in fiscal year 2001, representing
growth of $3.4 million. We expect the moderate decline in CD revenues in fiscal year 2002 to continue into fiscal
year 2003 and beyond as CD services are becoming increasingly commodity-driven and prices are continuing to
erode. We believe we can mitigate these effects by increasing product sales by linking CD usage with our
growing Web services segment. Primary competition in this market is from large document services providers




such as Lason, from hundreds of local and regional CD services providers, and from in-house on-line viewing
systems. These revenues are reported as CD/Digital in our financial statements.

Web Presentment Service *¥. Anacomp’s Web Presentment Service provides what we believe is an industry-
leading capability for storing, delivering and accessing documents using the Internet. This outsource service
provides 24x7 worldwide access to critical information for authorized users. Customer print data streams are
securely transmitted to an Anacomp Data Center, where the information is indexed and converted to a format
suitable for viewing through industry-standard Web browsers. Critical customer information can be stored
concurrently at dual sites, facilitating disaster recovery planning. Records for all aspects of the customer storage
process are maintained for the storage life of the document, providing an auditable record of all document activity.
We believe that financial market businesses, with highly regulated document retention and control requirements,
will be among the primary users of this service. Web Presentment Service is primarily sold via Anacomp’s direct
sales force.

Web Presentment Service revenues increased by 41% in fiscal year 2002, growing from $11.1 million in fiscal
year 2001 to $15.7 million. We expect continued growth from this revenue stream in fiscal year 2003 based upon
a number of factors, including increased customer awareness and recognition; a strong sales pipeline at the end of
fiscal year 2002; increased national concern for information security; and tighter financial reporting and record
keeping requirements. Web Presentment Service revenues are currently generated primarily in North America.
We have recently begun to focus on expanding this customer base throughout the U.K. and Italy.

Competition is growing in the Internet-based document management services market. In the U.S., several smaller
companies are offering somewhat similar services on a regional basis. Some nationwide competitors have also
emerged and are focused on vertical market sectors or specific, more narrowly focused applications such as check
presentment, enrollment or e-mail support. In particular, there is intense competition in the area of omnline
document viewing. Nevertheless, the major competition for Anacomp’s Web Presentment Service in North
America is in-house solutions (i.e., software licenses sold to corporations for running a Web service on internal
computer equipment). Providers of technology for compatible in-house solutions include FileNET Corporation,
Documentum, Inc., SER, Mobius Management Systems and IBM. In the last several months, some of these in-
house software solutions providers, recognizing the merits and potential revenues of a services-based solution,
have begun initiating competing service offerings, by partnering with existing document services providers. The
current economic conditions and widely reported limitations on capital spending by companies worldwide favors
outsourcing as a more economical means of acquiring Internet-based document management solutions. In the
U.K. and Italy, Anacomp competes with both global providers such as IBM and individual document management
outsource service providers within each country.

Integrated System Solutions. Anacomp previously offered Integrated System Solutions for document management
exclusively in our European markets, primarily through our Swiss subsidiary, Cominformatic AG. These services
were comprised of software license sales, a limited ASP service offering and attendant professional services based
on the internally developed Swiss software platform. In addition, a professional services offering in support of a
third party document management and workflow system was included. In fiscal year 2002, we decided to exit this
market and sold Cominformatic to edotech Limited, based in Gloucestershire, England effective October 1, 2002.
We believe that the service-based document management opportunities in Europe are a better match for our core
capabilities and that they will offer Anacomp greater revenue and profit opportunities. Integrated System
Solutions revenues were $3.7 million and $17 million for the three months ended December 31, 2001 and twelve
months ended September 30, 2001, respectively, and are included with CD/Digital revenues in our financial
statements.

Micrographic Services. Anacomp is a world leader in Micrographic (COM) Services. With time-tested
technological and operational expertise in COM, we image nearly two billion original pages to microfiche each
month for thousands of customers worldwide. The majority of these customers are in North America and
represent 87% of total revenues from Micrographic Services. Overall, fiscal year 2002 Micrographic Services
revenues were $92.6 million and represented 38 % of total Company revenues.

Compared with prior years, this line of business continued to decline in fiscal year 2002 largely as the result of a
decreased demand for the COM storage and retrieval medium. Overall, the Micrographic Services revenues




declined $27.7 million, or 23%, in fiscal 2002, compared to fiscal year 2001, reflecting the trend in the mature
micrographics market segment. The decline in revenues in fiscal year 2001 from fiscal year 2000 was $30.6
million and represented a 20% decrease. We are attempting to minimize the impact of the declining
micrographics market on our Micrographic Services business and are currently implementing several strategies
that are focused on retaining our business and relationships with our customers, while providing them effective,
useful solutions.

Our primary competitors in the COM outsourcing business in the U.S. marketplace include Lason and
SourceCorp. We also compete on a regular basis with hundreds of local and regional COM service providers.
To date, competition in this arena has been primarily based on price. We believe we can sustain our market share
by providing customers with bundled services that provide COM, print, Web and CD services in a single package.
We are also investigating using microfiche and microfilm for additional applications that require very long
retention periods and plan to support source document image to COM applications on a regular basis instead of
just a case-by-case basis as in the past.

Multi-Vendor Services. Our Multi-Vendor Services (MVS) is one of the principal growth areas for us. By
providing installation and maintenance for products made by other OEMs, Anacomp is able to leverage our
considerable field services and support expertise and infrastructure by expanding far beyond the range of our own
products. We offer Multi-Vendor Services using two approaches. First, Anacomp serves as an alternative to
maintenance services provided by the OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturers). For example, we offer users of
Xerox high-speed laser printers a high-quality, economical alternative to the service offered by Xerox Corporation
itself. There is a large installed base of Xerox printers worldwide and, in most cases, Xerox has been the major
source of field maintenance services for these critical printing systems. As a second approach, we contract with
an OEM to provide maintenance services, including field services as well as optionally available centralized
services such as help desk support, logistics support and depot repair for that company’s end users. This
arrangement appeals to manufacturers that have geographically limited maintenance capabilities or no capabilities
of their own, or whose own service operations are more costly to provide than ours. We service many different
makes and types of storage products, various routers and switches, high speed printing devices, tape subsystems
and many other systems under these arrangements.

We are striving to grow our MVS business by adding additional OEM partners and Vaiue Added Resellers
(VARs), as well as through possible acquisitions. Revenues in 2002 from MVS were $27 million, representing
52% of total maintenance services revenues and 11% of total Company revenues for the year. Annual MVS
revenues increased $4.7 million or 21% in fiscal year 2002, after increasing $3.2 million or 17% in fiscal year
2001. MYVS revenues of $27.1 million exceeded Micrographic Maintenanceé Services revenues of $25.4 million
for the first time in fiscal year 2002.

We compete with a number of other providers in the MVS business, including the OEM’s themselves and with
other third party maintenance providers such as DecisionOne Holdings, the Eastman Kodak Company (“Kodak”)
and IBM.

Micrographic Maintenance Services. Anacomp maintains virtually the entire installed base of Anacomp-
manufactured COM systems in use today, as well as COM systems manufactured by other suppliers. We also
provide maintenance support for other micrographic equipment, such as retrieval devices, microfilm scanners,
cameras and duplicators. Revenues from micrographic maintenance services were $25.4 million or 11% of total
Company revenues in fiscal year 2002,

We have few competitors in our traditional micrographic maintenance services business, and the majority of the
equipment we maintain is our own proprietary equipment.

Imaging and Print Systems. Anacomp has the largest installed base of COM systems in the world. Our flagship
XFP2000%® imaging platform remains the premier system in the marketplace, using precise laser-optics and
advanced film processing techniques to prod-ce high-quality, criginal and duplicate images of reports and other
documents on microfiche or 16mm roll film. The XFP2000 is the most widely used imaging system in the world,
with over 700 installations. We also use the XFP2000 for our own Micrographic Services operations. While we
no longer manufacture the XFP2000, we continue to offer “as new” XFP2000 imaging systems for sale, as well




as refurbished laser printers. Revenues from imaging and print systems and related equipment in fiscal year 2002
were approximately $4.2 million or 2% of total Company revenues in fiscal year 2002. Imaging and Print
Systems revenues are included as Equipment/Supplies in our financial statements. For fiscal year 2003 and
beyond, we expect COM imaging systems sales will continue to decline.

Imaging and Print Supplies. Complementing Anacomp’s imaging and print systems product offerings, we sell and
distribute an extensive assortment of supplies to help customers with their imaging needs. These supplies are sold
through a centralized telesales group and various distributors worldwide.

Primary products in our supplies business include silver halide original COM film (used to produce master
images) and non-silver duplicating microfilm (used to produce copies of master images). The majority of silver
halide original COM film for use of Anacomp’s XFP2000 systems is sold in a proprietary package and is
currently available only from Anacomp. We obtain our proprietary silver halide products through an exclusive
multi-year supply agreement with Kodak. The supplies business also distributes non-proprietary duplicating film
to our installed base of imaging systems users. We obtain our duplicate film products through a long-term supply
agreement with Intelicoat Technologies. We believe the users of our imaging systems purchase the majority of
their original and duplicate film and related chemicals from us. Revenues from supplies sales in fiscal year 2002
were $37.1 million or 15% of total Company revenues and were reported as Equipment/Supplies in our financial
statements.

We have no significant competitors in our proprietary XFP20030 original COM film business. In the original and
duplicate COM film market for older imaging systems, we compete with Global Information Distribution, Agfa-
Gevaert AG (“Agfa”) and Kodak.

Engineering, Research and Development

Anacomp’s ability to meet customer needs for improved technology, and to maintain our leadership in the
document management and related services industry, depends on our ability to incorporate evolving technologies
into our products and services to meet our customers’ needs. Our engineering and development expenses totaled
$7.6 million in fiscal year 2002, $7.2 million in fiscal year 2001 and $10.1 million in fiscal year 2000.

We own numerous patents and licenses covering various aspects of our business lines and production processes, as
well as proprietary trade secret information relating to our products and services. While we believe that the
protection provided by these patents, licenses and proprietary information is important, we also feel that the
knowledge and experience of our employees, along with their abilities to develop and market our services and
products and to provide value added benefits to our customers, is equally significant.

Intellectual Property

Anacomp has three patents that are material to our COM business that prevent competitors from developing a film
canister that is usable in the XFP2000 imaging system. As a result, it is more difficult for competitors to offer
COM film directly to our customers. Although the COM business is in decline, these patents serve to maintain
our leadership in this business segment. We also have one patent that is material to our information outsourcing
business. This patent pertains to the compression of color and gray-scale imagery to achieve a high compression
of data with a low loss and low computational burden. The patents described above expire at various times
between September 2010 and January 2016.

In addition, we hold trade secrets relating to the compression technology used in our information outsourcing
service offerings. While these trade secrets may be patentable, we have not applied for patents for competitive
reasons. Our compression technology affords us economies of storage, transmission and back-up of data. As
these economies reduce our costs, they provide a competitive advantage. We attempt to protect our trade secrets
by entering into confidentiality agreements with third parties, employees and consultants. Cur employees and
engineering consultants also sign agreements requiring that they assign to us their interests in patents and other
intellectual property arising from their work for us. Additionally, all employees sign an agreement not to engage
in any conflicting employment or activity during their employment with us nor to disclose or misuse our
confidential information. Should these agreements be breached or invalidated, however, there may not be an




adequate corrective remedy available. Consequently, we cannot assure that third parties, employees or consultants
will not breach the confidentiality provisions in our contracts or infringe or misappropriate our patents, trade
secrets and other proprietary rights, The measures we are taking to protect our proprietary rights may also not be
adequate.

Raw Materials and Suppliers

Polyester and silver are the principal raw materials used in the manufacture of both original and duplicate
microfilm products. Costs for both polyester and silver remained generally stable in fiscal year 2002 as a result of
a relative balance between supply and demand. There can be no assurance, however, that the current conditions
will continue.

Intelicoat Technologies and Anacomp entered into 2 new four-year agreement in Qctober 2001, in which Intelicoat
agreed to supply Anacomp with duplicate microfilm. At this time Intelicoat is the exclusive provider of duplicate
microfilm to Anacomp. There is only one other international qualified supplier of duplicate film.

Anacomp’s XFP2000 system utilizes a proprietary, patented original film canister and the original film used in
that canister is supplied exclusively by Kodak. We also purchase from Kodak substantially all of our requirements
for original microfilm for earlier-generation systems that we manufactured and other older systems.

Endustry Segments and Foreign Operations

Anacomp’s business is focused in the document management industry. Previously, our business results were
reported in two primary business lines, Document Solutions and Technical Services. We now manage our
business through one operating unit. We believe this approach will create operating efficiencies in our sales and
support organizations, and that it will promote business decisions that are more synergistic across product lines.
Financial information concerning our operations in different geographical areas is included in Note 20 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employees

As of September 30, 2002, we employed approximately 1,600 people at multiple facilities and offices in North
America and Europe, excluding our Switzerland subsidiaries that are classified as discontinued operations at
September 30, 2002. Some of our employees in certain European countries are represented by worker’s councils.
We consider our employee relations to be good.

Executive Officers

The current executive officers of the Company, their ages (as of November 22, 2002) and their positions with the
Company are listed in the following table:

NAME AGE PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION

Jeffrey R. Cramer 49 President and Chief Executive Gfficer

Linster W. Fox 53 Director, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Richard V. Keele 53 Executive Vice President, Global Marketing and Sales

Frank Roche 56 Executive Vice President and General Manager International

Thomas L. Brown 46 Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Paul J. Najar 40 Executive Vice President-Administration, General Counsel and
Secretary

James P. Hunt 43 Senior Vice President of Materials and Repair

The business experience of each executive officer for the past five years is described below. Each executive
officer holds office until his successor is chosen and qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal.

Jeffrey R. Cramer was elected Chief Executive Officer on October 1, 2002 and President on March 18, 2002.
Prior to that, he was our Senior Vice President-Technical Services since August 13, 1997. Mr. Cramer joined




Anacomp in July 1996 with Anacomp’s acquisition of COM Products, Inc., referred to as CPI, and served as
Senior Vice President-Business Development from February to August 1997. Mr. Cramer had served as
President of CPI since March 1987.

Linster W. Fox was elected Executive Vice President on April 25, 2002, Director on November 2, 2001, and
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer on November 15, 2000, having served as Senior Vice President
and Corporate Controller since August 2, 1999, and Vice President and Controller since July 1998. From January
1996 to June 1998, Mr. Fox served as Vice President and U.S. Controller. Previously, Mr. Fox served as Vice
President and Controller of our Poway Operations from May 1995 to December 1995. From October 1992 to
May 1995, Mr. Fox was Vice President of Finance and Administration for Poway Operations. Prior to that,
Mr. Fox served as Vice President of Finance and Administration for our International Operations from October
1990 to October 1992.

Richard V. Keele was elected Executive Vice President on April 25, 2002 and has led Anacomp’s Global
Marketing and Sales force since June 2002. Mr. Keele served as Senior Vice President and Chief Technology
Officer since September 2000. Mr. Keele joined Anacomp in January 1997 with the Company’s acquisition of
Data/Ware Development, Inc. thereafter he served as Senior Vice President of Product Development and
President of the Data/Ware Group.

Frank Roche was elected Executive Vice President - International on July 22, 2002. Mr. Roche joined Anacomp
in November 1997 serving as Technical Services Director for the UK and then was promoted to Technical
Services Director for the International Region. Prior to joining Anacomp, Mr. Roche was Managing Director and
CEO for the Fortay Group Holdings in the UK from 1991 to 1997.

Thomas L. Brown was elected Senior Vice President and Treasurer on August 10, 2000, having served as Vice
President and Treasurer since May 19, 1996. From January 1995 to April 1996, Mr. Brown served as Corporate
Controller of Hurco Companies, Inc. Mr. Brown had previously served as Assistant Vice President -- Financial
Reporting and Analysis for Anacomp from March 1991 until January 1995.

Paul J. Najar was elected Executive Vice President - Administration, General Counsel and Secretary on April 25,
2002 after serving as Vice President- Administration, General Counsel and Secretary since November 15, 2000.
Mr. Najar had served as Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary since joining Anacomp in October
1996. Prior to joining Anacomp, Mr. Najar was an attorney for the University of California, Irvine from May
1992 to October 1996.

James P. Hunt was elected to Senior Vice President of Materials and Repair on July 22, 2002 after serving as
Vice President of Resource and Materials Management since January 25, 2001. Mr. Hunt joined Anacomp in
1981, previously serving as Vice President of Materials, as well as in a variety of management roles within the
materials/manufacturing arena.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Anacomp’s headquarters will be in San Diego, California effective December 30, 2002. This facility will house
our management, customer service, marketing, a Document Services center, finance, accounting, legal and
information technology groups. Additional space located in Vista, California houses the equipment/supplies,
Multi-Vendor Services, and COM Professional Services groups. We also lease office space for sales and service
centers in a variety of locations around the world. Properties previously reported as owned are related to our
Swiss subsidiaries and have been classified accordingly in the current year as assets of discontinued operations in
our Consolidated Balance Sheet. The following table indicates the square footage of our facilities:




Operating Other
Facilities Facilities Total

United States:
Leased.....oooouvionrnrinnninnn. 690,751 30,229 720,980

[FX1: R——— 103,324 29,270 132,594
794,075 59,499 853,574

“Cther facilities” consists of currently unused space, substantially all of which have been subleased to others.
Management considers its facilities adequate for its present needs and does not believe that it would experience
any difficulty in replacing any of its present facilities if any of its current agreements were terminated.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On October 19, 2001 Anacomp filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code, together with a prepackaged plan of reorganization in the United States Bankruptcy Court for
the Southern District of California. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court confirmed the plan on December 10, 2001, and
we emerged from bankruptcy effective December 31, 2001. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court issued its final decree on
September 27, 2002 closing the Chapter 11 case. There are no remaining claims or unrecorded obligations related
to the bankruptcy proceedings.

Anacomp and its subsidiaries are potential or named defendants in several lawsuits and claims arising in the
ordinary course of business. While the outcome of claims, lawsuits or other proceedings brought against us cannot

be predicted with certainty, management expects that any liability, to the extent not provided for through
insurance or otherwise, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

During the three months ended September 30, 2002, no matters were submitted to a vote of Anacomp’s security
holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Anacomp’s Class A and Class B Common Stock are traded on the OTC Bulletin Board. Class B Common Stock
is not actively traded and is quoted only on a limited basis, and, as a result there is no established public trading
market with respect to Class B Common Stock. The Class A Common Stock is traded under the symbol ANCPA.
The following table sets forth the range of high and low closing prices for our Class A Common Stock for the
periods indicated, as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board (these quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without
retail mark up, mark down, or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions):

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

High Low High Low
First qUarter........ccoovvvieiiniieiie i (a) (@) (a) (@)
Second QUATTET......evvviririeiiiiiiei et $27.00 $21.00 (a) (a)
Third quarter............ooooveiiiiiiii 31.00 26.00 () (a)
Fourth quarter ... 26.75 22.00 (a) (a)

(a) Due to the bankruptcy reorganization, common stock prices for Anacomp prior to December 31, 2001
have been excluded.

Management currently intends to retain any future earnings for use in the operation and development of the
business and, therefore, does not expect to declare or pay any cash dividends on our capital stock. In addition,
our borrowing agreements prohibit the payment of cash dividends on our capital stock. As of December 5, 2002,
there were approximately 25 holders of record of our Class A Common Stock and approximately 70 holders of
record of our Class B Common Stock.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

We currently maintain two compensation plans that provide for the issuance of our Class A Common Stock to
officers and other employees, directors and consultants. These consist of the 2001 Stock Option Plan, which has
been approved by shareholders, and the 2002 QOutside Director Restricted Stock Plan (the “2002 Plan”), which has
not been approved by shareholders. The following table sets forth information regarding outstanding options and
shares reserved for future issuance under the foregoing plans as of September 30, 2002:

(a) (b} (©
Number of shares
remaining available

Number of shares
to be issued upon
exercise of

Weighted-average
exercise price of

for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans

outstanding outstanding (excluding shares
options, warrants options, warrants reflected in column
Plan Category and rights and rights (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholders ...........coovviiiiiiiii, 210,000 $ 26.00 193,403
Equity compensation plans not approved by
shareholders & .........cooiiiiiiii 2,000 N/A 3,000
Total 212,000 N/A 166,403

(1) Consists of shares that are outstanding, and shares available for future issuance, under the 2002 Plan.

The material features of the 2002 Plan are described below.
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Materia! features of the 2002 Qutside Director Restricted Stock Plan

As of September 30, 2002, we had reserved 5,000 shares of Class A Common Stock for issuance under the 2002
Plan. The 2002 Plan provides for the granting of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to outside directors,
the consideration of which shall be services actually rendered to Anacomp for its benefit. Shares granted under
the 2002 Plan may be made subject to vesting conditioned upon the satisfaction of service requirements,
conditions, restrictions or performance criteria, as shall be established by the board. Some of the shares that have
been granted under the 2002 Plan are subject to full acceleration of vesting in the event of a change in control of
Anacomp.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Company prior to the bankruptcy reorganization may be referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as
the “Predecessor Company” and the Company after the bankruptcy reorganization may be referred to in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K as the “Reorganized Company.” The following Selected Financial Data of the
Company should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” set forth in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and with the consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere herein:

Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
Nine months Three months
ended ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
(In thousands, except per share data) 9/30/02 12/31/01 9/30/01 9/30/00 9/30/99 9/30/98
Revenues ........ e aane $ 173,807 $ 68,024 $306,348 3$383,197 $442,162 § 394,938
Operating income (loss) from continuing
OPETALIONS ,..vvvneenerninerinenriieranernees 3,219 2,333 (1,621) (67,648) (28,539) (33,829)
Operating (loss) income before
extraordinary gain on extinguishments
of debt ........ B P (2,312) 12,031 (47,491) (111,434) (67,782) (66,635)
Net (1088) INCOME ..vvvvvveeniniirirnninnenrens 2,312) 277,360 (47,491) (111,434) (67,992) (67,749)
Basic and diluted net loss per share........ $ (0.57)
Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
As of As of As of As of As of
(In thousands) 9/30/02 9/30/01 9/30/C0 9/30/99 9/30/98
CUITENT ASSELS .. evvvvreeninenninierniniernaeenns $ 71,494 $ 81,315 $ 85,442 $117,603 § 147,629
Current liabilities (2).......ccccviveerineanininnn 78,629 475,603 458,673 124,787 119,859
TOtal @SSELS ..vvvirrvreeariieir e eieanncnenen 180,083 207,818 238,289 330,517 411,837
Long-term debt, less current portion (a)..... - - - 312,740 338,851
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)...........c....... 91,834 277,927) (230,926) (117,636) (47,492)

(a) We did not make required interest payments on our senior subordinated notes on October 1, 2000 and April 1, 2001. Accordingly,
the Notes balance outstanding, $310.9 million and $311.3 million at September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively, have been classified
as a current liability.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview and Recent Events
Events Leading Up to Our Bankruptcy in 2001
Our business, revenues and operating cash flows have declined in recent years. Two primary factors led to the

deterioration of our financial condition prior to our bankruptcy in 2001: (a) an erosion of the core COM
(Computer Qutput to Microfiche) business; and (b) heavy investment in Web-based digital technology.
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We have established ourselves as one of the world’s leading providers of COM services and COM related
professional services, equipment and supplies. Organizations increasingly want instant, reliable access to
information delivered via the Internet, intranet or extranets, for use with desktop browsers. This trend leads many
organizations to re-evaluate their document-management requirements, causing a shift away from microfiche and
into digital technology. As a result, our COM-related revenue decreased from $369 million in fiscal year 1999, to
$296 million in 2000 and $218 million in fiscal year 2001, 83%, 77% and 71 %, respectively of total revenue.

In response to this shift in technology, Anacomp made a significant commitment to develop storage and retrieval
solutions through acquisitions and heavy investments in research and development. Our engineering, research and
development expenses totaled $7.2 million in fiscal year 2001, $10.1 million in fiscal year 2000 and $10 million in
fiscal year 1999. In August of 1999, we purchased Litton Adesso Software, Inc. for $17 million and incurred
approximately $1.6 million of additional costs to further develop the acquired software as the technology platform
for the former docHarbor business unit, our Web-based product offering. This emerging operation reported a
negative EBITDA (earnings before interest, other income, reorganization items, restructuring charges, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, asset impairment charges and extraordinary items) of $25 million in fiscal year
2000 and negative EBITDA of $9 million in fiscal year 2001. Substantially all of the funds invested in the former
docHarbor business unit were obtained by borrowing against our Prepetition Credit Agreement (senior secured
revolving credit facility).

The combined impact of the declining COM revenues and increased costs related to docHarbor created a liquidity
crisis for us, which resuited in default on our Prepetition Credit Agreement. Beginning October 1, 2000, we did
not make scheduled semi-annual $17 million interest payments to the holders of our $310 million outstanding notes
(10-7/8% senior subordinated notes).

Our revenues, operating results, cash flows and liquidity were also negatively impacted by a number of other
factors during fiscal year 2001, including charges for the settlement of legal matters, professional and advisory
costs related to the restructuring of our notes, and costs associated with preparations for a potential sale of all or
parts of our European document-management business, known as Document Solutions International (“DSI”).

We reported a loss of $47.5 million and positive cash flows from operations totaling $18.5 million (including non-
payment of accrued interest of approximately $34 million) during fiscal year 2001. At September 30, 2001, we
had a working capital deficiency of $394.3 million (including $310 million in senior subordinated notes that were
classified as current and $51 million in related accrued interest) and a stockholders’ deficit amounting to $277.9
million,

Our 2001 Bankruptcy

On Cctober 19, 2001, we filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code, together with a prepackaged plan of reorganization with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern
District of California. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court confirmed the plan of reorganization on December 10, 2001,
and we emerged from bankruptcy effective December 31, 2001.

The primary benefits resulting from our bankruptcy were the elimination of $310 million of debt, related accrued
interest of $52.3 million and the related annual interest expense of approximately $34 million. Additionally, our
credit facility was amended such that we cured previous events of default and we continue to have the ability to
borrow under the credit facility. Borrowings under the facility are subject to revised terms and restrictions, and
we are required to make mandatory quarterly payments that reduce the borrowing base of the credit facility.

Under the plan of reorganization, our publicly traded 10-7/8% senior subordinated notes, accrued interest related
to the notes, and our then existing common stock were canceled and exchanged for shares of our new common
stock. Class A Common Stock was distributed to the holders of the notes. Class B Common Stock was
distributed to holders of our previous common stock and was subject to additional dilution, as provided for in the
plan of reorganization.

Also as a result of the confirmation of our plan of reorganization, the following occurred:
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all unexercised options were canceled and our prior stock option plans were terminated;

executory contracts were assumed or rejected,;

trade creditors were paid in the ordinary course of business and were not impaired;

a new slate of directors was appointed to the Board of Directors;

a total of 403,403 shares of Class A Common Stock were authorized for use in the establishment of new
stock option plans; and

o our senior secured revolving credit facility was amended.

Under bankruptcy law, an executory contract is an agreement between a debtor and third party under which, as of
the date of a debtor's Chapter 11 petition, material performance on the agreement remains due from both the
debtor and non-debtor party, such that the failure of either side to perform its obligations under the agreement
would excuse the other party from further performance. The Bankruptcy Code permits a Chapter 11 debtor to
assume (i.e., agree to continue to be bound both during the Chapter 11 case and following emergence) or reject
(breach and nc longer be bound during the Chapter 11 case or thereafter) any executory contract. We assumed all
of our executory contracts under our confirmed plan of reorganization except one, a nonresidential lease of real
property. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court issued its final decree on September 27, 2002 closing the Chapter 11 case.
There are no remaining claims or unrecorded obligations related to the bankruptcy proceedings.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and our results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, inventories,
intangible assets, income taxes, restructuring and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. QOur critical accounting policies are as follows:

©  revenue recognition;

o estimating valuation allowances and accrued liabilities, including the allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventory valuation and assessments of the probability of the outcomes of our current litigation and
environmental matters;

o accounting for income taxes; and

o  valuation of long-lived, intangible and reorganization assets.

Revenue Recognition.

We recognize contract revenue for the development and implementation of document services solutions under
contracts over the contract period based on output measures as defined by deliverable items identified in the
contract. We make provisions for estimated losses on contracis, if any, during the period when the loss becomes
probable and can be reasonably estimated.

L]

In accordance with SOP 97-2, ‘*Software Revenue Recognition,”” we recognize revenues from software license

agreements provided that all of the following conditions are met:

a non-cancelable license agreement has been signed;

the software has been delivered and there are no material uncertainties regarding customer acceptance;
fees are fixed or determinable;

collection of the resulting receivable is deemed probable and the risk of concession is deemed remote;
and

o  no other significant vendor obligations exist.

o © o o

14




For contracts with multiple obligations, we unbundle the respective components to determine revenue recognition
using vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOE). In instances where VSOE is not determinable, all of the related
revenue is deferred and amortized over the contract period.

We record revenues from sales of products and services or from leases of equipment under sales-type leases based
on shipment of products (and transfer of risk of loss), commencement of the lease, or performance of services.
We recognize operating lease revenues during the applicable period of customer usage. We recognize revenue
from maintenance contracts ratably over the period of the related contract. Amounts billed in advance of our
performing the related services are deferred and recognized as revenues as they are earned. Under sales-type
leases, we record as revenue the present value of all payments due under the lease, charge the cost of sales with
the book value of the equipment plus installation costs, and defer and recognize future interest income over the
lease term.

Allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory valuations, litigation and environmental matters. We must make
estimates of the uncollectability of our accounts receivable. When evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts, we specifically analyze accounts receivable as well as historical bad debts, customer
concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment terms.
Our accounts receivable balance was $34 million, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.7 million, as of
September 30, 2002.

We write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and
market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than management projects, we may need to write
down additional inventory.

We estimate ranges of liability related to pending litigation based on claims for which we can determine the
probability of loss and estimate the amount and range of loss. When an estimate of loss is deemed probable we
record our best estimate of the expected loss or the minimum estimated liability related to those claims, where
there is an estimable range of loss. Because of the uncertainties related to both the outcomes and ranges of loss on
currently pending litigation, we have not accrued for any litigation losses as of September 30, 2002. As additional
information becomes available, we will assess the potential liability related to our pending litigation and revise our
estimates as necessary. Such revisions in our estimates of the potential liability could materially impact our results
of operations and financial position.

Xidex Corporation, a company that we acquired in 1988, was designated by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (‘‘EPA’’) as a potentially responsible party for investigatory and cleanup costs incurred by
state and federal authorities involving locations included on a list of EPA’s priority sites for investigation and
remedial action under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act. At
September 30, 2002, we have an estimated EPA liability for cleanup costs for the aforementioned locations and
other sites totaling $1.2 million. During fiscal year 2001, we recorded a $1.0 million reduction to our EPA liability
previously estimated and accrued upon release from certain further clean-up activity. Remedial action required by
the EPA may exceed our current estimates and reserves and we may incur additional expenses related to
environmental clean-up.

Accounting for income taxes. As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are
required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves us
estimating our actual current tax liability together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing
treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which are included within our Consolidated Balance Sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred
tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we
must establish a valuation allowance. To the extent we establish a valuation allowance or increase this allowance
in a period, we must include an expense within the tax provision in the statement of operations.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, our deferred tax

assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets. The net deferred tax
asset as of September 30, 2002 was zero, net of a valuation allowance of approximately $43.3 million, due to

15




uncertainties related to our ability to utilize our net deferred tax assets before they expire. The valuation allowance
is based on our estimates of taxable income by jurisdiction in which we operate and the period over which our
deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust
these estimates in future periods we could materially impact our financial position and results of operations.

The tax benefits of pre-reorganization net deferred tax assets will be reported first as a reduction of the
reorganization asset and then as a reduction to non-current intangible assets arising from the reorganization, and
finally as a credit to stockholders’ equity. These tax benefits will not reduce future income tax expense for
financial reporting purposes.

Valuation of long-lived, intangible and reorganization assets. We assess the impairment of identifiable
intangibles, long-lived assets and recrganization value in excess of identifiable assets annually or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors we consider
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

s significant underperformance relative to historical trends or projected future operating results;

o significant changes in the manner of our use of our assets or the strategy for our overall business,
including potential asset dispositions;

o significant negative industry or economic trends;
significant decline in our stock price for a sustained period; and

o our market capitalization relative to net book value.

When we determine that the carrying value of intangibles, long-lived assets and reorganization value in excess of
identifiable net assets may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of
impairment, we measure any impairment based on a projected discounted cash flow method using a discount rate
determined by our management to be commensurate with the risk inherent in our current business model. Net
intangible assets, long-lived assets, and recrganization value in excess of identifiable assets amounted to $108.6
million as of September 30, 2002,

Our enterprise value of $150 million before consideration of debt after reorganization at December 31, 2001 was
determined based on the consideration of many factors and various valuation methods, including:

discounted cash flow analysis; '

selected publicly-traded company market multiples;

selected acquisition transaction multiples; and

applicable ratios and valuation techniques believed by management to be representative of our business
and industry.

@ o O o

The cash flows valuation utilized five-year projections assuming a weighted average cost of capital rate of
approximately 13.5%. A terminal value was determined using a muitiple of our estimated fifth year earnings
before interesi, other income, recrganization items, asset impairment and restructuring charges, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, and extraordinary items (EBITDA), together with the net present value of the five-
year projected cash flows. The excess of the reorganization value over the fair value of identifiable net assets of
$73.2 million is reported as ‘‘Reorganization value in excess of identifiable net assets’’ and will not be subject to
future amortization (similar to goodwill) in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(‘*‘SFAS’’) No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’’ as issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (*‘FASB’’). The asset is subject to reduction for current income tax expense that utilizes pre-reorganization
generated deferred tax assets. benefits of pre-reorganization net deferred tax assets. The utilization of these
deferred tax assets are reflected as a reduction of the “Re-organization value in excess of identifiable net assets”
value.

For enterprise valuation purposes, we estimated our revenues and cash flows through fiscal year 2006. We
projected continued declines in COM and COM-related revenues at a rate of approximately 20% annually and
growth in digital and Multi-Vendor Services and product offerings. Our projections also assumed the following:

o the elimination of our subordinated notes and related interest;
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our continuing cost reduction through consolidation of facilities and adjustments to our labor force to
maintain COM gross margin levels;

our recent cost reduction activities and restructurings; and

the completion of our bankruptcy and related legal and professional costs.

The assigned fair values of the Reorganized Company and its assets and liabilities represent significant estimates
that we made based on facts and circumstances currently available. Valuation methodologies employed in
estimating fair values also require the input of highly subjective assumptions and predictions of future events and
operations. Actual future events and results could differ substantially from management’s current estimates and
assumptions. Unfavorable changes compared to our projections used for Fresh Start Reporting purposes (which
were based on our best estimates and information available at that time) could result in future impairments of our
reorganization asset and identifiable intangible assets, which could be material.

Results of Operations

The following results of operations information includes our historical information from prior to December 31,
2001, the effective date we emerged from bankruptcy and is identified as results of operations of Predecessor
Company. The results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 represents the Reorganized
Company after adopting Fresh Start Reporting. Due to our reorganization and the implementation of Fresh Start
Reporting, the financial information for the Reorganized Company is not comparable to the Predecessor
Company. In addition, in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002 we committed to a plan to sell our Switzerland
operations and in the third quarter we sold two smaller operating units. The operating results for these units have
been classified as income from discontinued operations for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002. For
all other periods presented these units were not material to our consolidated results and are therefore not reported
as discontinued operations. To facilitate a meaningful comparison of Anacomp’s year-to-date operating
performance in fiscal years 2002 and 2001, the following discussion of results of operations on a consolidated
basis is presented on a traditional comparative basis for all periods. However, the pro forma results of operations
presented below for the twelve-month period ended September 30, 2002 combines the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2002 on a Reorganized Company basis with the three-month period ended December 31, 2001 on a
Predecessor Company basis. These periods and bases of accounting are not comparable and we have presented
them separately in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000
(Predecessor {Predecessor
(in thousands, unaudited) (Pre Forma Basis) Company) Company)
Revenues:
RIS T (U P U UPRURR $ 195,837 3 236,635 $ 269,012
Equipment and supply Sales..........coovvvirireriririreieerieneiennenns 45,994 69,713 114,185
241,831 306,348 383,197
Cost of revenues:
Y] 4 1 O TN 131,729 155,273 176,796
Equipment and Supply Sales...........ccc..vvevieeriiiiirieeeeeaenanneas 32,868 51,455 89,535
164,597 206,728 266,331
GLOSS PIOfit.. e iiniieeireir et et e e 77234 99,620 116,866
Costs and expenses:
Engineering, research and development...........c.cccooiiininnnn. 6,985 7,208 10,081
Selling, general and administrative.................cooonn. 59,265 83,527 100,016
Amortization of reorganization asset.................ooceiiiiiiiiiinnns - --- 12,003
Amortization of intangible assets ..............c..coiiiii 4,383 11,713 19,314
Restructuring charges (Credits) .........coocoiviiiviniiiiniiniiiininnnnns 1,049 (1,207) 14,607
Asset impairment Charges ......o.vveveiieiniciniriiiiiinnes - --- 28,493
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations................. 5,552 (1,621) (67,648)
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Other income (expense):

INtErest INCOME .....ievitiitiiiirriinereieernir s itreairrans 508 1,338 1,225
Interest expense and fee amMOTHZAHON .. ueveeervenenrrirnisienieninnis (6,183) (43,860) (41,000)
L0 OO TP U OT VU POTO RN 75 (131 (825)

(5,600) (42,653) (40,600)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before reorganization
items, income taxes and extraordinary gain on extinguishment

OF AEbt.ee ittt r e e (48) (44,274) (108,248)
Reorganization items 13,328 --- -
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

and extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt.................... 13,280 (44,274) (108,248)
Provision for iNCOME tAXES .. ... verrrvrrvinenninrriieenieeeereiiianians 4474 3,217 1,550
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary

gain on extinguishment of debt..........c.cccvvvirieiiiiiniin, 8,806 (47,491) (109,798)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes................... 913 - -
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes................ --- (1,636)
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain on extinguishment of

AEDE Lo e e e s 9,719 (47,491) (111,434)
Extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt, net of taxes........ 265,329 --- -
NEt inCOME (J0SS)....cveereerreeeeeeeeieeieeeeeee e eeterareeeiareaeeaaaeens $ 275,048 $ (47,491) $ (111,434)

QOur revenues, operating results, cash flows and liquidity in fiscal year 2002 continue to be negatively impacted by
an overall decline in our COM business. For the twelve months ended September 30, 2002, we reported net
income totaling $275 million. This was primarily due to reorganization items of $13.3 million and the
cancellation of debt and resulting extraordinary gain of $265.3 million. Positive cash flows provided by
continuing operations were $18.8 million for the twelve months ended September 30, 2002. At September 30,
2002, we had negative working capital of $7.1 million, and stockholders’ equity of $96.7 million. The negative
working capital is primarily due to the current period classification of our credit facility balance, due June 30,
2003, as current. Excluding this balance, our working capital at September 30, 2002 was positive $22.8 million.
Upon receipt of at least $4 million in net proceeds from the Switzerland sale, expected in early 2003, the
maturity date of the credit facility will be extended from June 30, 2003 to December 31, 2003.

Effective December 31, 2001, we amended our senior secured revolving credit facility including these terms:

e a $58.9 million limit, with a $53.1 million sublimit for direct borrowing and a $5.8 million letter of
credit sublimit;

s  certain restrictions on our operations as well as scheduled principal repayments;

o  an interest rate that is subject to reduction as the periodic scheduled principal repayments occur; and

e scheduled maturity of June 30, 2003, which may be extended to December 31, 2003 under certain
conditions.

In accordance with the new agreement, the $53.1 million direct borrowing sublimit was reduced to $44.8 million
as of September 30, 2002 as a result of scheduled principal repayments, issuance of a new letter of credit, and the
sale of assets. The credit commitment will be further reduced by future periodic scheduled amounts and by 85%
of the net proceeds from the sale of the Switzerland subsidiaries. The facility is available for new borrowings
when borrowings are below the direct borrowing sublimit.

Effective December 19, 2002, we signed an amendment to the revolving credit agreement. The amendment
modifies certain financial covenants to accommodate the sale of our Switzerland operations and current business
plans. Other changes to the agreement included a permanent reduction to the credit facility commitment of $10.0
million, a decrease in future quarterly commitment reductions, and provisions for acquisitions and/or divestitures
under specified conditions.

In May 2001, we announced our intention to sell all or parts of our European document-management business,
Document Solutions International (“DSI”). Approximately $3.9 million was spent for restructuring, consulting
and severance expenses in fiscal year 2001 in preparation for a potential sale of DSI. In the third quarter of fiscal
year 2002, we sold portions of DSI generating proceeds of approximately $0.3 million. In the fourth quarter of
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fiscal year 2002, we committed to a plan to sell our Switzerland operations. On October 18, 2002, we completed
a sale of all of our Switzerland subsidiaries and operations at a sales price of CHF 26.7 million (Swiss francs).
Revenues from the Swiss operations were $6.9 million, $21.9 million and $30.4 million, or 10.1%, 7.2% and
7.9% of total Anacomp revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2001 and fiscal years 2001 and 2000,
respectively. No additional sales of all or portions of DSI are planned at this time.

The sales price for the Switzerland operations is payable as follows: CHF 4.6 million was received at closing;
CHF 18.2 million upon completion of the Cominformatic share exchange, no later than six months from the
closing date; CHF 1.1 million on or before April 18, 2003; and CHF 2.8 million within the next 18 months upon
expiration of certain indemnification claim periods. Effectively all of the net proceeds will be used to reduce the
balance outstanding under the credit facility, under the terms of the senior secured revolving credit facility.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002 vs. Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

General. We rteported net income of $275 million in fiscal year 2002, primarily as a result of the
extraordinary gain recognized as a result of our Chapter 11 reorganization effective December 31, 2001,
compared to a net loss of $47.5 million in fiscal year 2001. COM based revenues continued to decline in line
with historical trends, however, both MVS and Web presentment revenues grew at a double-digit rate over the
prior year revenue. In addition, our cash flow from continuing operations for the twelve months ended September

30, 2002 was $18.8 million, which in addition to our September 30, 2001 cash on hand, enabled us to reduce our
outstanding credit facility balance by $25 million during the fiscal year.

Revenues. Our revenues totaled $241.8 million in fiscal year 2002, a decrease of 21%, or $64.5 million,
from $306.3 million in fiscal year 2001.

We defined our product lines as follows:

MVS - Multi-Vendor Services where Anacomp acts as a third party maintainer, provides support services such as
help desk or depot repair, laser printer maintenance and associated hardware sales.

Web - Transmitted ingestion, storage, delivery and internet browser-based access to documents. Also includes
license sales and maintenance for the Adesso software that is our Web platform in the US.

CD/Digital - CD based document management services, scanning, professional services and digital software sales.
COM/ Other Output Services - Cur Computer Cutput Microfilm and laser printer document management services.

COM Professional Services - Our maintenance services for Computer Output Microfilm and other micrographic
products.

Equipment/Supplies - Computer Output Microfilm original and duplicate film, chemistry and hardware sales.

Percentage

Product Line FY 2002 FY 2001 Change change
MVS § 27,069 $ 22,383 $ 4,686 20.9%

Web presentment 15,716 11,129 4,587 41.2

CD/Digital 39,639 54,662 (15,023) (27.5%)
COM/Other Output Services 92,615 120,344 (27,729) (23.0%)
COM Professional Services 25,402 34,523 9,121) (26.4%)
Equipment/Supplies 41,390 63,307 (21.917) (34.6%)
Total $ 241,831 $ 306,348 $ (64,517) 21.1%)
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The $4.7 million, or 20.9%, increase in MVS revenues over prior year revenue reflects the increase in new OEM
agreements and the resulting continued growth in our Multi-Vendor Services (services provided for, and sales of,
products manufactured by other companies) offerings. In fiscal year 2002, MVS revenues exceeded COM
Professional Services revenues for the first time. The expansion of MVS continues to be a focus for us.

Web presentment revenues increased $4.6 million, or 41.2% over prior year revenue. This reflects the addition
of new customers and additional revenue from established customers as they have increased the number of
applications utilizing our Web services. We expect continued revenue growth in this product line.

CD/Digital revenue declined $15 million, or 27.5%, from prior year revenue. This decrease was primarily the
result of the treatment of the Switzerland operations as discontinued for the nine-months ended September 30,
2002. Switzerland CD/Digital revenue totaled $17.7 million and $5.9 million in the year ended September 30,
2001 and three-months ended December 31, 2001 respectively. The remainder of the decline is the result of
lower per unit pricing as the CD service has become less specialized and more of a commodity and as customers
have opted for in-house on-line solutions, Total CD images processed in our data centers in 2002 increased
approximately 10% over 2001.

COM/Other Output Services revenue declined $27.7 million, or 23%, from the prior year. This decline reflects
the decreased volumes processed in our data centers and continues the trend experienced in prior years. We
expect the COM revenues will continue to decline in future fiscal years.

COM Professional Services revenues declined $9.1 million, or 26.4%, from the prior year. This decline reflects
the continued decrease in the number of COM units in operation worldwide. We expect that the number of COM
units in use worldwide will continue to decline as organizations choose to outsource the functions to service
centers, such as those operated by us, or elect to utilize other options such as CD or on-line software systems.

Equipment and supplies revenue declined $21.9 million, or 34.6%, over the prior year. This decrease was largely
the result of the decline in demand and use of COM units.

Gross Margins. Our gross margin as a percentage of revenues declined slightly from 32.5% ($99.6
million) for fiscal year 2001 to 31.9% ($77.2 million) for fiscal year 2002. We were able to maintain the gross
margin percentage of revenues in spite of the revenue declines through cost savings resulting from our recent and
prior restructuring activities, which included the consolidation and downsizing of facilities and reductions in our
work force.

Engineering, Research and Development.  Engineering, research and development expenditures
decreased $0.2 million, or 3.1%, over the prior year. These costs represented 2.9% and 2.4% of total revenues
for fiscal years 2002 and 2001, respectively. These expenses will not necessarily have a direct or immediate
correlation to revenues. We continue to build and support our outsource service solutions base and corresponding
internet and digital technologies.

Selling, General and Administrative. SG&A expenses deceased from $83.5 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001 to $59.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. The $24.2 million, or 29.0%,
decrease was primarily the result of fiscal year 2001 charges of $5.4 million for the settlement of a litigation
matter, $5.1 million in legal, professional and financial advisory costs related to the restructuring of the
Company’s Notes and $3.9 million in legal, professional, and severance costs associated with preparations for a
sale of DSI. The remainder of the reduction in SG&A costs were primarily attributable to the benefits of the
integration of the former docHarbor business unit into the Document Solutions business unit, begun in May 2001.
Additional annualized savings of approximately $3.5 million are expected as a result of the 2002 reorganization of
our operations from two business units into one entity.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets decreased 62.6%, from $11.7 million
for the year ended September 30, 2001, to $4.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2002. Fiscal year 2001
amortization expense represented the amortization of goodwill related to acquisitions in prior years. All gocdwill
assets from the Predecessor Company were eliminated in conjunction with Fresh Start Reporting. Fiscal year
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2002 amortization expense reflects the amortization of identifiable intangible assets valued as part of Fresh Start
Reporting.

Restructuring Charges (credits). In the third quarter of fiscal year 2002, we recorded a restructuring
charge of $2.1 million related to the reorganization of our operations from two business units to one entity. The
reorganization of the workforce consisted of combining the field organizations of Document Solutions and
Technical Services into one organization, the establishment of an executive level position to oversee all sales and
marketing activities and a single support group for our data centers, Web Presentment operations, field services
operations and process quality. The restructuring charges included $1.6 million in employee severance and
termination related costs for approximately 100 employees, all of whom left the Company by September 30, 2002.

The restructuring charges also include approximately $0.4 million for the closure of a data center for which the
lease expires in July 2004, As a result of the restructuring we anticipate annual savings of approximately $7.1
million, or approximately $0.6 million monthly. We achieved a phase-in of cost savings in the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2002.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2002, we reversed $1 million of business restructuring reserves primarily related
to favorable circumstances related to the shutdown of our Japanese subsidiary. Our closure costs to vacate our
facility in Japan, cost to fulfill our contract obligations and severance and related professional costs up to that time
were less than anticipated at the time the accrual was recorded.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2001, we reversed $1.2 million of business restructuring reserves consisting of
$0.9 million and $0.3 million from our 2000 and 1998 restructuring plans, respectively. Our 2000 restructuring
plan reversals included $0.4 million in facility closing costs and $0.5 million of professional and other costs,
consisting primarily of the following items.

In fiscal year 2000, we accrued lease termination and exit costs for ten facilities throughout the world. In England
and Scotland, we were reimbursed for originally accrued exit costs for this leased space that were reflected as a
restructuring credit in the third quarter of 2001 upon receipt of such reimbursement.

Our 2000 restructuring plan also called for one of our business units to exit a United Kingdom facility, which we
deemed to be inadequate for its operating needs. Because of our deteriorating financial condition, our need to
conserve European cash and our inability to transfer working capital from the United States to Europe under the
terms of our Bank Group forbearance agreement, both of which were subsequent to initiating our 2000
restructuring plan, we opted to continue operating from this facility although the facility was not ideally suited to
our needs. This revision to our plan resulted in a benefit to our original estimate of our restructuring costs and
was recorded during the third quarter of 2001.

In fiscal year 2000 we planned to occupy substantially less space in our California headquarters facility and
estimated that a portion of the building space would not be sublet, resulting in estimated lease losses. We were
able to renegotiate the lease prior to issuing our third quarter 2001 financial statements, with our new lease
obligation consisting only of occupied space. Accordingly, we reported the favorable outcome in the third quarter
of 2001.

Our 2000 restructuring plan estimated professional fees of approximately $1.4 miilion due to complex and varying
legal requirements for personnel terminations and plant closures at our multiple global facilities. We estimated
these fees based on our prior experience in exiting facilities and the comparatively expensive cost, from a United
States company perspective, of terminating international personnel. As a result of our actual cost experience rates
through June 30, 2001, we revised our original estimate resulting in a credit to the restructuring accrual of
approximately $0.5 million.

Our 1998 restructuring plan had estimated employee separation costs based upon notifications of classes of
employees, Actual employee separation costs completed in the third quarter of fiscal year 2001 were lower than
estimated, as those personnel actually terminated had less experience and thus received less severance than
originally estimated by class.
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Reorganization [tems. Reorganization items represent expenses and adjustments resulting from our
reorganization and consist of professional fees incurred subsequent to our Chapter 11 filing totaling $1 million,
fair value adjustments made to assets and liabilities totaling $16.9 million and other asset write-offs and
settlements totaling $2.6 million (primarily related to our extinguished debt) in Fresh Start Reporting.

Extraordinary Gain on Extinguishment of Debt. Extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt, net of
taxes, totaled $265.3 million for the three-month period ended December 31, 2001 as compared to none in the
comparable prior year period and resulted from our bankruptcy proceedings and emergence from Chapter 11
proceedings on December 31, 2001.

Interest Expense and Fee Amortization. Interest expense decreased to $6.2 million for the year ended
September 30, 2002 from $43.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. Current year expense included
interest (approximately $1.7 million) on our senior subordinated notes only up to October 19, 2001, the date we
filed Chapter 11 bankruptcy. Prior year expense included a full twelve months of interest (approximately $34
miilion) on the notes. The remainder of expense from both periods is related primarily to interest on the senior
secured revoiving credit facility. We expect interest expense to be less in 2003 as a result of an expected
reduction in the credit facility outstanding reflecting the proceeds from the sale of our Switzerland operations.

Provision for income Taxes. In the current year, tax expense totaling $4.5 million consists of $1.7
million related to earnings of foreign subsidiaries and $2.8 million related to domestic operations. The provision
for income taxes of $3.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2001 related primarily to earnings of foreign
subsidiaries. The significant fiscal year 2002 provision compared to income before income taxes results from
taxes related to foreign operations and to cancellation of life insurance policies for which cash surrender value
increases had not been tax effected in prior years.

Discontinued Operations. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002, we adopted a plan to divest our
Switzerland businesses and on October 18, 2002 we completed a sale. The Switzerland operations were not
material to cur consolidated result prior to December 31, 2001. As a result the statements of operations for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2000 and 2001 and for the three months ended December 31, 2001 do not
segregate the Switzerland operations as discontinued.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001 vs. Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

General. We reported a net loss of $47.5 million in fiscal year 2001, compared with a net loss of $111.4
millicn in fiscal year 2600.

Revenues. Our revenues totaled $306.3 million in fiscal year 2001, a decrease of 20%, or $76.8 million, from
$383.2 million in fiscal year 2000.

Percentage

Product Line FY 2001 FY 2030 Change change
MVS $ 22,383 $ 19,164 $ 3,219 16.8%
Web presentment 11,129 6,318 4,811 76.1
CD/Digital 54,662 61,436 (6,774) (11.0%)
COM/Other Cutput Services 120,344 150,927 (30,583) (20.3%)
COM Professional Services 34,523 44,827 (10,304) (23.0%)
Equipment/Supplies 63.307 100,525 (37,218) (37.0%)
Total LM $ 383,197 $ (76,849) (20.1%)

The $3.2 million, or 16.8%, increase in MV S revenues over prior year revenue reflects the increase in new OEM
agreements and the resulting continued growth in our Multi-Vendor Services (services provided for, and sales of,
products manufactured by other companies) offerings.
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Web presentment revenues increased $4.8 million, or 76.1% over prior year revenue. This reflects the growing
customer base for these services.

CD/Digital revenue declined $6.8 million, or 11.0%, from prior year revenue. This decrease was primarily in
our Switzerland Integrated System Solutions product line.

COM/Other Output Services revenue declined $30.6 million, or 20.3%, from the prior year. This decline reflects
the decreased volumes processed in our data centers and continues the trend experienced in prior years.

COM Professional Services revenues declined $10.3 million, or 23.0%, from the prior year. This decline reflects
the continued decrease in the number of COM units in operation worldwide.

Equipment and Supplies revenue declined $37.2 million, or 37.0%, over the prior year. This decrease was
largely the result of the decline in demand and use of COM units.

Gross Margin. Our gross margin decreased 15% during the fiscal year 2001, from $116.9 million (30% of
revenues) in fiscal year 2000 to $99.6 million (33% of revenues) in fiscal year 2001. The decrease in gross
margin dollars was primarily the result of the $76.8 million decrease in revenue from fiscal year 2000. Fiscal
year 2001 gross margin as a percentage of revenue was greater than the fiscal year 2000 primarily as a result of
the $9 million inventory charge in fiscal year 2000.

Engineering, Research and Development. Engineering, research and development expense decreased from $10.1
million in fiscal year 2000 to $7.2 million in fiscal year 2001. This decrease was primarily the result of lower
expenses related to the discontinuance of manufacturing operations effective October 1, 2000 and the resulting
decrease in support engineering expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses or SG&A expenses,
decreased from $100.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2000, to $83.5 million for the year ended
September 30, 2001. The $16.5 million decrease was primarily the result of continuing cost reduction efforts.
SG&A expenses during fiscal year 2000 included severance and other costs related to changes in senior
management. SG&A expenses for the current year reflect our cost reduction efforts as well as the benefit of a
reduction to our environmental liability reserves of $1.0 million, as a result of receipt of a Rescission of Site
Cleanup Requirements. The effect of the Rescission Order is to release Anacomp from future liability at the
named site. We continue to have certain minimum testing obligations at these sites for which accrued liabilities
were previously recorded. These benefits were offset by the $5.4 million charge for the settlement of a litigation
matter, $5.1 million in legal, professional and financial advisory costs related to the proposed restructuring of our
Notes and $3.9 million in legal, professional and severance costs associated with preparations for a sale of DSI.

Amortization of Reorganization Asset. Amortization of reorganization asset in fiscal year 2001 decreased to zero
from $12 million (3.1% of revenues) in fiscal year 2000. Fiscal year 2000 amortization of reorganization asset
expense of $12 million completed the amortization of the asset related to our 1996 reorganization.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets decreased 39%, from $19.3 million for the
year ended September 30, 2000, to $11.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2001. This decrease was
primarily the result of the decreased level of goodwill due to the fiscal year 2000 goodwill impairment charge of
$21.4 million and completion of amortization for certain acquisitions.

Restructuring Charges and Credits. In fiscal year 2000, we recorded restructuring charges of $14.6 million
related to the reorganization of our workforce in the United States and Europe along our then four lines of
business, a reorganization of parts of the corporate staff, and the phase out of manufacturing operations. The
reorganization of the workforce and corporate staff consisted of management reassessing job responsibilities and
personnel requirements in each of our continuing and on-strategy business units and corporate staff. Such
assessment resulted in substantial permanent personnel reductions and involuntary terminations throughout the
organization, primarily in our European operations and our corporate and manufacturing staff. The restructuring
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charges included $10.3 million in employee severance and termination-related costs. Employee severance and
termination-related costs were for approximately 300 employees, all of whom have left Anacomp, although some
severance payments were paid throughout calendar year 2001. The restructuring charges also include $1.9 million
of other fees related to professional services associated with negotiations to terminate facility leases and other
costs associated with implementation of the business unit structure and the reorganization of the four business units
into separate entities, $1.4 million for contractual obligations and $1.0 million for facility-related costs. Other
fees were paid by December 31, 2001. As a result of the restructuring, we anticipated cost savings in excess of .
$1.0 million per month, primarily related to reductions in future payroll and related employer costs and lease
rental costs resulting from vacated facilities. We anticipated the phase-in of cost savings to begin in the third
quarter of fiscal year 2000. We have substantiaily achieved these cost savings as planned.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2001, we reversed $1.2 million of business restructuring reserves consisting of
$0.9 million and $0.3 million from our 2000 and 1998 restructuring plans, respectively. Our 2000 restructuring
plan reversals included $0.4 million in facility closing costs and $0.5 million of professional and other costs,
consisting primarily of the following items.

In fiscal year 2000 we accrued lease termination and exit costs for ten facilities throughout the world. In England
and Scotland we were reimbursed for originally accrued exit costs for this leased space that were reflected as a
restructuring credit in the third quarter of 200! upon receipt of such reimbursement.

Qur 2000 restructuring plan also called for one of our business units to exit a United Kingdom facility, which we
deemed to be inadequate for its operating needs. Because of our deteriorating financial condition, our need to
conserve European cash and our inability to transfer working capital from the United States to Europe under the
terms of our Bank Group forbearance agreement, both of which were subsequent to initiating our 2000
restructuring plan, we opted to continue operating from this facility although the facility was not ideally suited to
our needs. This revision to our plan resulted in a benefit o our original estimate of our restructuring costs and
was recorded during the third quarter of 2001.

In fiscal year 2000 we planned to occupy substantially less space in our California headquarters facility and
estimated that a portion of the building space would not be sublet, resulting in estimated lease losses. We were
able to renegotiate the lease prior to issuing our third quarter 2001 financial statements, with our new lease
obligation consisting only of cccupied space. Accordingly, we reported the favorable outcome in the third quarter
of 2001.

Our 2000 restructuring plan estimated professional fees of approximately $1.4 million due to complex and varying
legal requirements for personnel terminations and plant closures at our multiple global facilities. We estimated
these fees based on our prior experience in exiting facilities and the comparatively expensive cost, from a United
States company's perspective, of terminating international personnel. As a result of our actual cost experience
rates through June 30, 2001, we revised our original estimate resulting in a credit to the restructuring accrual of
approximately $0.5 million.

Our 1998 restructuring plan had estimated employee separation costs based upon notifications of classes of
employees. Actual employee separation costs completed in the third quarter of fiscal year 2001 were lower than
estimated, as those personnel actuaily terminated had less experience and thus received less severance than
originally estimated by class.

Asset Impairment Charges. During the third quarter of fiscal year 2000, we wrote off a note receivable with a
carrying value of $2.7 million generated from the sale of our Magnetics division in fiscal year 1999 based on the
declining operating results and liquidity of the acquirer. Alsc in the third quarter of 2000, due to our overall
liquidity position, we abandoned a new software product as well as our Image Mouse product. As a result, we
wrote off approximately $1.6 million of capitalized software development costs and approximately $0.7 million of
specialized manufacturing assets, respectively. Further, we recorded impairments of manufacturing equipment
and leasehold improvements totaling approximately $2.0 million as a result of the discontinuation of
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manufacturing operations effective October 1, 2000 pertaining to the former DatagraphiX (hardware systems and
supplies) segment and downsizing of facilities.

Interest Expense and Fee Amortization. Interest expense increased 7%, from $41.0 million in fiscal year 2000 to
$43.9 million in fiscal year 2001. This was the result of a higher level of borrowings on the revolving credit
facility for the first six months of fiscal year 2001 compared to the first six months of fiscal year 2000.

Provision for Income Taxes. The provisions for income taxes of $3.2 million for the year ended September 30,
2001 and $1.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2000 related primarily to earnings and dividends of
certain foreign subsidiaries.

Loss on Sale of Discontinued Operations. During the second quarter of fiscal year1999, we adopted a plan to
divest our Magnetics business. For financial reporting purposes, the divestiture was effective at the end of the
second quarter of fiscal year 1999, and we recognized a gain on the sale of the business during the third quarter of
fiscal year 1999. However, as a result of changes in our business strategy and the related effect on certain
Magnetics Division obligations, we revised certain estimates of costs to be incurred in connection with this
disposition, resulting in a charge of $1.6 million being recorded in the third quarter of fiscal year 2000.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our legacy business (COM) has declined in recent years and is forecast to continue to decline as new technologies
become available and are accepted in the marketplace. Our ability to generate sufficient cash to fund operations
and to meet future bank requirements is dependent on successful and simultaneous management of the decline in
COM as well as the expansion of alternative service offerings. Other factors, such as an uncertain economy,
levels of competition in the document management industry, and technological uncertainties will impact our ability
to generate cash and maintain liquidity. Although no assurances can be given, management believes that the
actions taken over the past two years, including new and enhanced product and service offerings, company
downsizing, cost control measures and the debt restructuring from our bankruptcy have positioned us for a return
to profitability and maintenance of sufficient cash flows from operations to meet our operating, capital and debt
requirements in the normal course of business for at least the next twelve months.

Concurrent with the emergence from bankruptcy on December 31, 2001, Anacomp and Fleet National Bank, as
agent, and its syndicate of lenders (collectively, “the Bank Group”) entered into an Amended and Restated
Revolving Credit Agreement. The amended facility included a $58.9 million credit commitment, with a $53.1
million sublimit for direct borrowing and a $5.8 million letter of credit sublimit. In accordance with the new
agreement, the $53.1 million direct borrowing sublimit was reduced to $44.8 million as of September 30, 2002 as
a result of scheduled principal repayments, issuance of a new letter of credit, and the sale of assets. The credit
commitment will be further reduced by future periodic scheduled amounts and by 85% of the net proceeds from
the sale of the Switzerland subsidiaries. The facility is available for new borrowings when borrowings are below
the direct borrowing sublimit.

At September 30, 2002, our outstanding revolving credit borrowings were $30.0 million (plus outstanding standby
letters of credit of $6.3 million). During the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002, we made cash
payments totaling $23.1 million, which is $16.1 million greater than our scheduled repayments, resulting in $14.8
million of borrowing capacity, including the effect of other commitment reductions.

The maturity date of the amended facility is June 30, 2003, with an extension to December 31, 2003 upon the
receipt of at least $4 million net proceeds from the sale of the Switzerland subsidiaries. The receipt of the required
proceeds is expected to occur in early 2003. Upon receipt of the net proceeds, we will be required to permanently
reduce the borrowing sublimit of the credit facility commitment by 85% of the net sale proceeds. Substantially all
of the net proceeds will be used to reduce the outstanding revolving credit borrowings. The credit facility
commitment was permanently reduced by $0.8 million upon the initial receipt of proceeds from the sale of the
Switzerland subsidiaries in October 2002.
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The amended facility bears interest at a base rate equal to the higher of a) the annual rate of interest announced
from time to time by Fleet National Bank as its best rate, or b) one-half of one percent above the Federal Funds
Effective Rate, for the portion of the facility equal to a Formula Borrowing Base (“FBB”). The FBB equals 80%
of eligible accounts, which include U.S. and Canadian accounts receivable. The rate of interest is three
percentage points higher than the base rate for the facility balance outstanding in excess of the FBB. Interest is
due and payable monthly in arrears. The interest rate was 4.75% for the FBB portion and 7.75% for the excess
portion at September 30, 2002, At September 30, 2002, the FBB was $15.3 million and the excess of borrowings
over the FBB was $14.7 million.

The credit facility is secured by virtually all Anacomp assets and 65% of the capital stock of our foreign
subsidiaries. The facility contains covenants relating to limitations on the following:

capital expenditures;

additional debt;

open market purchases of our common stock;
mergers and acquisitions; and

liens and dividends.

o o 0o 0o o

The credit facility also is subject to minimum EBITDA, interest coverage and leverage ratic covenants. In
addition, we are required to remit tc the Bank Group the net proceeds of any capital asset sale.

Effective December 19, 2002, we signed an amendment to the revolving credit agreement. The amendment
modifies certain financial covenants to accommodate the sale of our Switzerland operations and current business
plans. Other changes to the agreement included a permanent reduction to the credit facility commitment of $10.0
million, a decrease in future quarterly commitment reductions, and provisions for acquisitions and/or divestitures
under specified conditions.

Under the current facility as amended, the facility commitment and the direct borrowings sublimit will be
permanently reduced in the future as follows:

$1.125 million on December 31, 2002

$1.125 million on March 31, 2003;

$1.25 million on June 30, 2003;

$1.25 million on September 30, 2003 (assuming that the maturity date is extended as planned).

® ® 0o o

As of December 20, 2002, the outstanding revolving credit borrowings were $24.2 million and borrowing
capacity was $9.8 million.

Our credit facility currently matures on June 30, 2003. It will automatically extend to December 31, 2003, upon
payment to the bank of the Switzerland subsidiary sale proceeds that we expect to receive in early 2003. No later
than December 31, 2003, we will be required to either repay any remaining principal or refinance the credit
facility. We believe we will be able to refinance the facility prior to that date, although, there can be no
assurances that such financing will be available on terms acceptable to us, if at all.

We had negative working capital of $7.1 million at September 30, 2002, compared to negative working capital of
$394.3 million at September 30, 2001. The negative working capital at September 30, 2002 results from the
current period classification of our $30.0 million revolving credit facility, due June 30, 2003, from long-term to
current. The working capital deficiency at September 30, 2001 was primarily due to $310 million in notes, $51
million of related accrued interest, and $55.1 million of borrowings under the senior secured revolving credit
facility. Excluding the credit facility balance, our working capital at September 30, 2002 was a positive $22.9
million.

To facilitate comparison of cash flow activity, cash flows for the twelve months ended September 30, 2002
discussed below represents the combination of the three-month period ended December 31, 2001 (Predecessor
Company) and the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002 (Reorganized Company) presented in the
accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Net cash provided by continuing operations was $18.8 million for the twelve months ended September 30, 2002,
compared to $18.5 million in the comparable prior year period.

Net cash used in investing activities was $3.9 million in the current twelve-month period, compared to cash used
in investing activities of $6.4 million in the comparable prior year period. Expenditures in both years were
primarily for purchases of equipment, although fiscal year 2001 included $1.6 million paid on prior year
acquisition agreements.

Net cash used in financing activities was $25.1 million during the current twelve-month period, compared to $1.8
million used in financing activities in the prior period. In both periods, cash was used to pay down the revolving
credit facility, and the prior year amount also includes $0.8 million received on liquidation of a currency swap
contract.

Our cash balance totaled $15.6 million at September 30, 2002 compared to $24.3 million at September 30, 2001.
Approximately 49% of the September 30, 2002 cash balance is located at our foreign subsidiaries compared to
approximately 50% at September 30, 2001. Cur use of excess cash as additional payments against our credit
facility resulted in the decrease of domestic cash on hand.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all of the other information included in this Form 10-K
in evaluating our business and our prospects. Investing in our Class A or Class B Common Stock (collectively,
“Common Stock”) involves a high degree of risk. Additional risks and uncertainties may also materially adversely
affect our business and financial condition in the future. Any of the following risks could materially adversely
affect our business, operating results or financial condition and could result in a complete loss of your investment.

We recently effectuated a financial restructuring pursuant to a prepackaged Chapter 11 plan of
reorganization, we have a history of net losses and we may face liquidity issues in the future.

On October 19, 2001 we filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code and a prepackaged plan of reorganization. The Bankruptcy Court confirmed the plan of reorganization on
December 10, 2001 and we emerged from our bankruptcy proceedings effective December 31, 2001. However,
our completion of bankruptcy proceedings does not assure our continued success. For example, the bankruptcy
proceedings described above are our second bankruptcy: we previously filed a plan of reorganization in January
1996 and emerged from those proceedings in June 1996. If our financial performance does not exceed our recent
historical results, the price of our Common Stock could decline and your investment could be materially adversely
affected. As part of our plan of reorganization, our lenders modified the terms of our senior credit facility which
encumbers substantially all of our assets. This facility also includes mandatory periodic paydowns and covenant
restrictions concerning the commitment limits of this facility including levels of collateral, financial covenants,
and limitations on capital expenditures. Our credit facility is scheduled to mature on June 30, 2003, or under
certain circumstances on December 31, 2003, at which time we will be required to renew, refinance, or modify
the credit facility with our lenders or locate alternative financing. These restrictions and provisions could have an
adverse impact on our future liquidity and ability to implement our business plan.

Our revenues could continue to decrease over the next few years, which could inhibit us from achieving or
sustaining profitability or even prevent us from comtinuing to operate.

Our accumulated deficit through December 31, 2001 has been eliminated as a result of Fresh Start Reporting.
However, we have not recorded sustained profitable operating results for quite some time. To achieve sustained
future profitability we will need to generate and sustain planned revenues while satisfying our payment obligations
under the terms of our senior secured revolving credit facility (including mandatory paydowns) and maintaining
reasonable cost and expense levels. We do not know when or if we will become profitable on a sustained basis. If
we fail to achieve consistent profitability and generate sufficient cash flows, we will face liquidity and bank
covenant issues and our senior secured debt could become immediately due and payable on demand. Even though
we generated operating income from continuing operations in the nine months ended September 30, 2002, we may
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not be able to sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or an annual basis. Any failure on our part to achieve
or sustain profitability could cause our stock price to decline.

The development of alternate technologies in the document management industry is decreasing the need for
our micrographics services and products.

The document management industry is rapidly changing. The recent trend of technological advances and attendant
price declines in digital systems and products is expected to continue. As a result, in certain instances, potential
micrographics customers have deferred, and may continue to defer, investments in micrographics systems
(including our XFP 2000 COM system) and the utilization of micrographics service centers while evaluating the
abilities of other technologies. Additionally, the continuing development of local area computer networks and
similar systems based on digital technologies has resulted and will continue to result in many of our customers
changing their use of micrographics from document storage, distribution and access to primarily archival use. We
believe that this is at least part of the reason for the declines in recent years in both sales and prices of our
duplicate film, readers and reader/printers. Our service centers also are producing fewer duplicate microfiche per
original for customers, reflecting the shift towards using micrographics primarily for long term archival storage.
Revenues for our micrographics services and preducts, including COM service revenues, COM system revenues,
maintenance service revenues and micrographics supplies revenues, have been adversely affected for each of the
past five fiscal years and will likely in the future be substantially adversely affected by, among other things, the
increasing use of digital technology. COM revenues from services, system and supplies sales declined 27% in
2002 from fiscal year 2001 revenues. Overall, COM revenues represented 66% of our revenues for the twelve-
month period ended September 30, 2002, 71% of our fiscal year 2001 revenues, 77% of 2000 revenues, 83% of
1999 revenues, 91 % of 1998 revenues and 95% of 1997 revenues. Additionally, the rapidly changing document
management industry has resulted in price competition in certain of our businesses, particularly COM services.
We have been and we expect to continue to be impacted adversely by the decline in the demand for COM
services, the declining market for COM systems and the attendant reduction in supplies revenues. We expect that
our revenues for maintenance of COM systems will continue to decline as a result of decreasing use and fewer
sales of COM systems. Additionally, the growih of alternate technologies has created consolidation in the
micrographics segment of the document management industry. To the extent consolidation in the micrographics
segment has the effect of causing major providers of micrographics services and products to cease providing such
services and products, the negative trends in the segment, such as competition from alternate technologies
described above, may accelerate. If we do not adapt to the rapid changes in the document management industry,
our business will suffer and your investment will be adversely affected.

Intense competition in the document management industry could prevent us from imcreasing or sustaiming
our revenues and prevent us from achieving or sustaining profitability.

The document management industry is becoming increasingly competitive, especially in the market for Internet-
based document management services. We face, and will continue to face, competition from other document-
management outsource-service providers as well as from document-management software providers who offer in-
house solutions. Some of our competitors are leading criginal equipment manufacturers with established client-
relationships in our target markets. Some of our competitors are significantly larger than we are and have greater
financial resources, greater name recognition and longer operating histories than we have. Qur competitors may
be able to respond more quickly or adjust prices more effectively to take advantage of new opportunities or
customer requirements. Increased competition could result in pricing pressures, reduced sales, reduced margins or
failure to achieve or maintain widespread market acceptance, any of which could prevent us from increasing or
sustaining our revenues and achieving or sustaining profitability.

Fluctuation in our quarterly financial results may cause instability in our stock price.

Our COM business has experienced and continues to experience trending decline; however, the rate at which this
decline will impact our operations is difficult to predict. Additionally, we attempt to base our operating expenses
on anticipated revenue levels, and a substantial percentage of our expenses are fixed in the short term. As a result,
any delay in generating or recognizing revenues could cause our operating results to be below expectations.
Moreover, the operating expenses from our growth initiatives may exceed our estimates. Any or all of these
factors could cause the price of our common stock to decline.
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If we are unable to decrease our costs to match the decline in our revenues, we may not be able te achieve
or sustain profitability.

The decline in the demand for COM services, systems and maintenance and the attendant reduction in supplies
revenues have adversely affected our business. Over the past several years, COM revenues from services, system
and supplies sales have been steadily decreasing as a percentage of our revenues and declined 27% in 2002 from
fiscal year 2001 revenues. We expect that our revenues for maintenance of COM systems will continue to decline
as a result of decreasing use and fewer sales of COM systems. We have taken steps such as facilities consolidation
and personnel reductions to reduce our cost structure and offset the decrease in COM revenues. We intend to take
additional measures as necessary to continue to reduce our cost structure. If these measures are unsuccessful, we
will not realize profits from our COM business and your investment may be adversely affected.

If our future results do mot meet or exceed the projections and assumptions we made for Fresh Start
Reporting purposes, we may have to write dewn the values of some of our assets.

On December 31, 2001, as a result of our emergence from bankruptcy, we adopted Fresh Start Reporting. This
resulted in material changes to our financial statements including the recording of an asset for “reorganization
value in excess of identifiable net assets.” We determined the value of our business and accordingly, our
reorganization asset by making certain projections and assumptions based on historical results as well as our best
estimates of expected future market conditions. Unfavorable changes compared to our projections used for Fresh
Start Reporting purposes could result in future impairments of our reorganization asset and our identifiable
intangible assets. If these assets were to be impaired, the value of your investment could decline.

If we are unable to make technological advancements and upgrades to our current product and services
offerings, we will lose market share.

In order to maintain and grow market share, we continually invest in offering new customer solutions and in
upgrading our storage and delivery systems and infrastructure. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
continue to develop innovations in our software to stay abreast of client needs. We also cannot assure you that we
will be able to maintain or upgrade our infrastructure to take advantage of new technology. Our future plans for
growth and a return to profitability would be detrimentally affected if we are unable to develop new and
innovative customer solutions or if we are unable to sustain our infrastructure.

Litigation or third party claims of intellectual property infringement could reguire us to spend substamntial
time and money and adversely affect cur ability to develop and commercialize products.

Third parties may accuse us of employing their proprietary technology without authorization. In addition, third
parties may obtain patents that relate to our technologies and claim that our use of such technologies infringes
these patents. Regardless of their merit, such claims could require us to incur substantial costs, including the
diversion of management and technical personnel, in defending ourselves against any such claims or enforcing our
patents. In the event that a successful claim of infringement is brought against us, we may be required to pay
damages and obtain one or more licenses from third parties. We may not be able to obtain these licenses at a
reasonable cost, or at all. Defense of any lawsuit or failure to obtain any of these licenses could adversely affect
our ability to develop and commercialize products and our operating results.

The loss of key personnel or the inability to attract and retain additional personnel could impair our ability
to expand our operations.

We are highly dependent on the principal members of our management team and the technical expertise of our
personnel, especially in our Technical Services business unit. The success of this business is based on our
technical expertise and proven ability to provide fast, expert, on-site service and support around the clock. This
service is provided in North America and Europe by approximately 400 Anacomp service professionals, the loss
of whose services might adversely impact the achievement of our business objectives. Moreover, our business
operations will require additional expertise in specific industries and areas applicable to products identified and
developed through our technologies. These activities will require the addition of new personnel, including
management and technical personnel as well as the development of additional expertise by existing employees.
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Competition for experienced technicians may limit our ability to attract or retain such technicians. If we are
unable to attract such personnel or to develop this expertise, we may not be able to sustain or expand our
operations in a timely manner or at all.

We face business, political and ecomomic risks because a significant portion of cur sales is to customers
outside of the United States.

Revenues from operations outside the United States accounted for 28 % of our total revenue for the twelve-month
period ended September 30, 2002 and 30% of our total revenue in fiscal year 2001. Although we previously
announced our intent to sell all or parts of cur European document management business, our success continues to
depend upon our international operations, and we expect that a significant portion of our total future revenues will
be generated from international sales. Our international business involves a number of risks, including:

our ability to adapt our products to foreign design methods and practices;

cultural differences in the conduct of business;

difficulty in attracting and retaining qualified personnel;

longer payment cycles for and greater difficulty collecting accounts receivable;

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, royalties and withholding taxes that restrict the
repatriation of earnings;

tariffs and other trade barriers;

the burden of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws;

political, economic or military conditions associated with current worldwide conflicts and events;

the exchange markets and our ability to generate, preserve and repatriate proceeds and dividends to the
parent company in the United States; and

o to the extent that profit is generated or losses are incurred in foreign countries, our effective income tax
rate may be significantly affected. Any of these factors could significantly harm our future international
sales and, consequently, our revenues and results of operations and business and financial condition.
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We wse hazardous chemicals in our busimess and smy claims relating to improper handling, storage or
dispesal of these materials could be time consuming and costly.

Our operations involve the use and sale of hazardous chemicals. Although we believe that our safety procedures
for handling and disposing comply with the applicable standards, we cannot eliminate the risk of accidental
contamination or discharge and any resultant injury from these materials. Federal, state and local laws and
regulations govern the use, manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous materials. In the event of an
accident, we may be sued for any injury or contamination that results from our use or the use by third parties of
these materials, and our liability may exceed our insurance coverage and our total assets.

Disclosure of trade secrets could aid our competitors.

We attempt to protect our trade secrets by entering into confidentiality agreements with third parties, our
employees and consultants. However, these agreements can be breached and, if they are, there may not be an
adequate remedy available to us. If our trade secrets become known we may lose our competitive position.

If we are unable to adequately protect our imtellectual property, third parties may be able to use our
technology, which could adversely affect our ability to compete in the market.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to obtain protection for our intellectual property. We will be able to
protect our intellectual property rights from unauthorized use by third parties only to the extent that our software
is copyrightable and business methods are patentable under applicable intellectual property laws or are effectively
maintained as trade secrets. The laws of some foreign countries do not protect intellectual property rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States and many companies have encountered significant problems in
protecting and defending such rights in foreign jurisdictions. Furthermore, others may independently develop
similar or alternative technologies or design around our intellectual property protections. In addition, our
competitors may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or may otherwise gain
access to our trade secrets.
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Difficulties we may encounter managing our growth preduct lines may divert reseurces and limit our ability
to successfully expand our operations and implement our business plan.

We anticipate that our MVS and Web presentment product lines will be able to grow as a result of our
reorganization. Our growth in the future anticipates potential acquisitions that may place a strain on our
administrative personnel and operational infrastructure should such acquisitions occur. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to identify acquisition candidates, or be able to consummate acquisitions on terms acceptable to us,
if at all. Additionally, we cannot assure you that we will have funds available for making acquisitions. Effectively
managing growth will also require us to improve our operational, financial and management controls, reporting
systems and procedures. We may not be able to successfully implement improvements to our management
information and control systems in an efficient or timely manner and may discover deficiencies in existing systems
and controls.

We rely on a few suppliers to provide us COM products that while in decline, are essential to our
operations.

Supplies and system sales represented approximately 17% of our total revenue, for fiscal year 2002. The primary
products in the supplies business of our Technical Services Business Unit are silver halide original COM film and
non-silver duplicating microfilm. We obtain all of our silver halide products through an exclusive multi-year
supply agreement with a single provider and our duplicate film products from two other providers. Any disruption
in the supply relationship between Anacomp and such suppliers could result in delays or reductions in product
shipment or increases in product costs that adversely affect our operating results in any given period. In the event
of any such disruption, we cannot assure you that we could develop alternative sources of raw materials and
supplies at acceptable prices and within reasonable times. Additionally, as the demand for COM services declines,
the demand for COM supplies falls as well. If the decline in COM supplies is greater than planned, our
profitability and liquidity would decline as well.

Qur stock price may be volatile, and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the price you
paid, or at all.

Since the effective date of our bankruptcy restructuring, our common stock has had limited trading activity on the
OTC Bulletin Board. We cannot predict the extent to which investor interest in our stock will lead to the
development of a more active trading market, how liquid that market might become or whether it will be
sustained. The trading price of our common stock could be subject to wide fluctuations due to the factors
discussed in this risk factors section and elsewhere in this report. In addition, the stock markets in general have
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. These broad market and industry factors may decrease the
market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

Revenues generated outside the United States, as a percentage of total revenues, were 28% in fiscal year 2002,
30% in fiscal year 2001 and 30% in fiscal year 2000. Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could impact
operating results through translation of the Company’s subsidiaries’ financial statements.

The Company is exposed to the risk of future currency exchange rate fluctuations, which is accounted for as an
adjustment to stockholders' equity. Therefore, changes from reporting period to reporting period in the exchange
rates between various foreign currencies and the U.S. Dollar have had and will continue to have an impact on the
accumulated other comprehensive loss component of stockholders' equity reported by the Company, and such
effect may be material in any individual reporting period.

The Company’s bank revolving credit facility is affected by the general level of U.S. interest rates. The Company
had $30 million outstanding under its bank line of credit on September 30, 2002. If interest rates were to increase
2%, the Company’s annual interest expense would increase approximately $0.6 million based on the $30 million
outstanding balance.
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Foreign Exchange Options

We completed a sale of our Switzerland subsidiaries and operations on October 18, 2002 to edotech Ltd. (a UK
company) at a sales price of CHF 26.7 million (Swiss francs) or approximately $17.9 million {(U.S. dollars). CHF
4.6 million of the sales price was paid at closing. However, the remaining sales price was deferred and is payable
as follows: CHF 18.2 million upon completion of the Cominformatic share exchange, no later than six months
from the closing date; CHF 1.1 million on or before April 18, 2003; and CHF 2.8 million within the next 18
months upon expiration of certain indemnification claim periods.

Effectively all of the net proceeds (i.e. sales price less sale costs) will be used to reduce the revolving balance
outstanding and 85% of such proceeds will permanently reduce the total borrowing commitment under the terms
of the senior secured revolving credit facility. The Bank Group approval of the Switzerland sale transaction was
conditioned upon protecting the value of the future cash proceeds because of foreign exchange risk.

On October 15, 2002, we entered into three forward contracts to hedge the expected cash receipts from the sale.
The contract protecis Anacomp against an exchange rate above 1.5425. The first forward contract was written in
the amount of CHF 18.2 million and expires on January 29, 2003. We receive full exchange benefits for a lower
rate unless the rate falls to 1.4100 at any time prior tc the expiration date. If that occurs, the forward option
becomes fixed at 1.5425. The minimum U.S. dollar proceeds received would be $11.8 million.

The second forward contract was written in the amount of CHF 2.1 million and expires on April 15, 2003. We
receive full exchange benefits for a lower rate on CHF 1.0 million of the contract and the remaining CHF 1.1:

million will be converted at 1.5425. The minimum U.S. dollar proceeds received would be $1.4 million if the
buyer releases all funds.

The third forward contract was written in the amount of CHF 1.8 million and expires on April 15, 2004. We
receive full exchange benefits for a lower rate on 50% of the contract and the remaining 50% will be converted at
1.5425. The minimum U.S. dollar proceeds received would be $1.2 million if the buyer releases all funds.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Financial statements and supplementary financial information appear on pages A-1 to A-36 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement under the
headings “Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” from its
Definitive Proxy Statement to be delivered to the shareholders of the Company in connection with the 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held February 25, 2003. Information regarding executive officers is set
forth in Item 1 of Part I of this Report under the caption “Executive Officers.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement under the
heading “Executive Compensation.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement under the
heading “Security Ownership of Management and Other Beneficial Owners.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Definitive Proxy Statement under the
heading “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as
such term is defined under Rule 13a-14(c) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), within 90 days of the filing date of this report. Based on their evaluation, our principal
executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
effective.

(b) There have been no significant changes (including corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses) in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these
controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation referenced in paragraph (a) above.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON

(a) 1. The foliowing financial statements and other information appear in Appendix A to this Annual

®

©

31
3.2
4.1
4.2

4.3

10.1

PART IV

FORM 8-K

Report on Form 10-K and are filed as a part hereof:

Report of Independent Public Accountants.

Consolidated Balance Sheets - September 30, 2002 and 2001.

Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years Ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) - Years Ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and
2000.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financial Statement Schedules are not filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K because the Schedules
are either inapplicable or the required information is presented in the financial statements listed
immediately above or in the notes thereto.

Reports on Form 8-K:

1. On September 21, 2002, the Company filed a report on Form 8-K dated September 21, 2002
with respect to [tem 5. Other Events regarding the adoption of its Rights Plan.

2. The Company filed a report on Form 8-K dated July 3, 2002 with respect to a press release
regarding a worldwide reorganization.

The following exhibits are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated herein by
reference to the listed document previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the"SEC"). Previously unfiled documents are noted with an asterisk (*):

Plan of Reorganization dated August 29, 2001. (1)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company as of December 31, 2001. (2)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company as of April 25, 2002. (3)

Shareholders Rights Plan. (4)

Amendments to the Shareholders Rights Plan.

Warrant Agreement by and between the Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC dated December
31, 2002. (2)

Retirement / Part-Time Employment Agreement dated Cctober 27, 1999, between the Company and
William C. Ater. (5) (7)
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10.2  Employment Agreement, effective August 21, 2000, between the Company and Jeffrey R. Cramer. (6)
(M

10.3 Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of June 15, 1998, among Anacomp, Inc., the various lending
institutions named therein and BankBoston, N.A. as agent. (8)

10.4  Forbearance and Standstill Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2000, among Anacomp, Inc., the
various banks named therein, and Fleet National Bank as agent for the banks. (5)

10.5 Amendment to the Forbearance and Standstill Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2000, between
Anacomp, Inc. and Fleet National Bank. (5)

10.6  Amended and Restated Master Supply Agreement, dated October 8, 1993, by and among the Company,
SKC America, Inc. and SKC Limited. (9)

10.7 First Cumulative Amendment to the Amended and Restated Master Supply Agreement, dated May 17, 1996,
by and among the Company, SKC America, Inc. and SKC Limited. (10)

10.8 Second Amended and Restated Master Supply Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1997, by and among the
Company, SKC America, Inc. and SKC Limited. (11)

10.9  Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement and Restructure of Obligations
dated as of December 19, 2002, by and among the Company, the various banks named therein, and Fleet
National Bank as agent for the banks.

10.10 Lease Agreement by and between the Company and Kilroy Realty, LP., a Delaware limited partnership dated
June 14, 2002. (12)

10.11 Consulting Agreement by and between the Company and Steven G. Singer dated May 7, 2002. (12)

16. Letter by Arthur Anderson to the SEC dated May 28, 2002 regarding change in certifying accountant. (13)

21.1 Subsidiaries.

23.1 Consent of Ernst and Young LLP.

23.2  Solely due to the closure of Arthur Andersen LLP’s San Diego, California office, after reasonable efforts
, the Registrant was unable to obtain the written consent of Arthur Andersen LLP to incorporate by

reference its report dated November 21, 2001.

99.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 for Chief Executive Officer.

99.2  Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 for Chief Financial Officer.

() Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2001 and October 29,
2001.

2) Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the registration statement of Form 8-A filed by the Company
on January 9, 2002.

3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002.
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(10)

(1)
12
13)

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on September 21, 2002.
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2001.
Management contract or compensation plan.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 24, 1998 (File No. 1-
8328).

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1993.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1 Registration
Statement filed with the SEC on September 19, 1996 (File No. 333-9395),

Incorporated by reference to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1999.
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 29, 2002.
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1. SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ANACOMP, INC.

By: /s/ Jeffrey R. Cramer

Jeffrey R. Cramer
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: December 23, 2002

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Dated: December 23, 2002 By: /s/ Edward P. Smoot
Edward P. Smoot
Chairman of the Board

Dated: December 23, 2002 By: /s/ Linster W. Fox
Linster W. Fox
Director, Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Dated: December 23, 2002 By: /s/ Ralph B. Bunje, Jr.
Ralph B. Bunje, Jr., Director

Dated: December 23, 2002 By: /s/ Charles M. Taylor
Charles M. Taylor, Director
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I, Jeffrey R. Cramer, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Anacomp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, resuits of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days
prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on cur most recent evaluation, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's
auditers any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying officers and [ have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 23, 2002

Jeffrey R. Cramer
Chief Executive Officer
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I, Linster W. Fox, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Anacomp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: December 20, 2002

Linster W. Fox
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF ERNST&YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

To the Stockholders and the
Board of Directors of Anacomp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Anacomp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September
30, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity/(deficit), and cash flows for the
nine months ended September 30, 2002 (Reorganized Company) and the three months ended December 31, 2001
(Predecessor Company). These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Anacomp, Inc.'s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. The consolidated financial statements of Anacomp, Inc. for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and
2000, were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors opinion on those statements
contained an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in their report
dated November 21, 2001.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2002 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Anacomp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2002, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 (Reorganized
Company) and the three months ended December 31, 2001 (Predecessor Company) in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed above, the financial statements of Anacomp, Inc. as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, and for the years
then ended were audited by other auditors who have ceased operations. As described in Note 2 these financial
statements have been revised to include the transitional disclosures required by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (Statement) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which was adopted by the Company as of
January 1, 2002, Our audit procedures with respect to the disclosures in Note 2 with respect to 2001 and 2000
included (a) agreeing the previously reported net income(loss) to the previously issued financial statements and the
adjustments to reported net income(loss) representing amortization expense (including any related tax effects)
recognized in those periods related to goodwill, intangible assets that are no longer being amortized, to the
Company's underlying records obtained from management, and (b) testing the mathematical accuracy of the
reconciliation of adjusted net income(loss) to reported net income(loss). In our opinion, the disclosures for 2001 and
2000 in Note 2 are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2001
and 2000 financial statements of the Predecessor Company other than with respect to such disclosures and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the Predecessor Company's 2001 and
2000 financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ ERNST&YOUNG LLP

San Diego, CA

December 12, 2002,

except for note 4 as to which the
date is

December 19, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Anacomp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Anacomp, Inc. (an Indiana corporation) and
Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders'
deficit, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiai
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Anacomp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2001 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has defaulted on its debt obligations, has
substantial operating and liquidity issues, and has filed for voluntary bankruptcy protection and reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, which raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying
amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that might result should the Company be unable to continue as
a going concern.

/sf ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
San Diego, California
November 21, 2001

NOTE: THIS IS A COPY OF THE AUDIT REPORT PREVIOUSLY ISSUED BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
("ANDERSEN") IN CONNECTION WITH ANACOMP, INC.'S FORM 10-K FILING FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001. THE INCLUSION OF THIS PREVIOUSLY ISSUED ANDERSEN REPORT IS
PURSUANT TO THE "TEMPORARY FINAL RULE AND FINAL RULE REQUIREMENTS FOR ARTHUR
ANDERSEN LLP AUDITING CLIENTS," ISSUED BY THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION IN MARCH 2002. NOTE THAT THIS PREVIOUSLY ISSUED ANDERSEN REPORT
INCLUDES REFERENCES TO CERTAIN FISCAL YEARS, WHICH ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE
PRESENTED IN THE ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR
THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 AND 2000. THIS AUDIT REPORT HAS NOT BEEN REISSUED
BY ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP IN CONNECTION WITH THIS FILING ON FORM 10-K. SEE EXHIBIT 23.02
FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION.
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CONSQLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Anacomp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Current portion of long term receivables, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other
Assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Long term receivables, net of current portion
Reorganization value in excess of identifiable net assets

.................................................

.....................................

GOOAWILL.ooviiiiiii i et ctbe e s s ant e st et beb e b e s e seresabeaesaen e

Intangible assets, net

(0111 - L1 SO OO UUURUTTOR

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:

Current portion of senior secured revolving credit facility
10-7/8% senior subordinated notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation, benefits and withholdings
Accrued income taxes
Accrued interest
Other accrued liabilities
Liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:

Unfunded accumulated benefit obligation
Other long-term liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Preferred stock, 1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued

......................

.......................

Common stock, $.01 par value; 40,787,711 shares authorized,;

4,036,034 shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

.................................................

.......................

Reorganized Predecessor
Company Company
September 30, September 36,
2002 2001
3 15,561 $ 24,308
33,990 43,360
1,305 1,395
3,474 4,937
5,137 7,315
12,027 —--
71,494 81,315
21,448 33,141
1,188 1,252
73,227 -
- 86,285
10,813 ---
1,913 5,825
$ 180,083 $ 207,818
$ 29,975 $ 55,075
~-- 310,943
9,797 13,958
16,294 16,111
1,900 5,625
--- 50,969
16,422 22,922
4,241 -
78,629 475,603
6,233
3,387 10,142
9,620 10,142
40 146
96,942 111,324
(2,836) (4,912)
(2,312) (384,485)
91,834 (277,927)
$ 180,083 $ 207,818

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Anacomp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Reorganized
Company (a)

Predecessor Company (a)

income per share ...........ccocoiiiiiii

(dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts) Nigz;?:,:::re;g e Th:;ig;';:?: ;1" ded S:;;:n‘;‘:e;o’ S:::t:n:::'egﬂ,
2002 2001 2001 2000
Revenues:
SEIVICES vttt ettt $ 140,739 A 55,098 % 236,635 8 269,012
Equipment and supply sales.........cccooooovoveiiirirerioieenin 33,068 12,926 69,713 114,185
173,807 68,024 306,348 383,197
Cost of revenues:
S BTVECES cuti ettt ettt e ee et 95,099 36,630 155,273 176,796
Equipment and supply Sales .............ccccorvovicrivonenrrinnnns 22,994 9,874 51,455 89,535
118,093 46,504 206,728 266,331
GrOSS PrOfi.....o. ittt 55,714 21,520 99,620 116,866
Costs and expenses:
Engineering, research and development........cccc..coccovieece, 5,305 1,680 7,208 10,081
Selling, general and administrative ..., 43,622 15,643 83,527 100,016
Amortization of reorganization asset............c.ccvennicnnn --- 12,003
Amortization of intangible assets, including goodwill........ 1,487 2,896 11,713 19,314
Restructuring charges (credits).............c.oooooivcniiincnnn, 2,081 (1,032) (1,207) 14,607
AsSet impairment Charges .........c..cco..cooovvevornrcoronreinennon, - -=- - 28,493
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations 3,219 2,333 (1,621) (67,648)
Other income (expense):
TNEErest INCOME....oovi oot 353 155 1,338 1,225
Interest expense and fee amortization ..., (3,069) 3,114) (43,860) (41,000)
OHET ..ot et e 296 (221 (a3 (825)
(2,420) (3,180) (42,653) (40,600)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
reorganization items, income taxes and extraordinary
gain on extinguishment of debt ... 799 (847) (44,274) (108,248)
Re0rganization JtemS............ccocoowioioic oot crion, - 13,328 -
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes and extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt..... 799 12,481 (44,274) (108,248)
Provision for iNCOME taXeS ...........ovvevverirreeriirenesiesiernsiesenens 4,024 450 3,217 1,550
(Loss) income from continuing operations before |
extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt.................... (3,225) 12,031 (47,491) (109,798)
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes................ - --- (1,636)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes ................... 913 - -
(Loss) income before extraordinary gain on extinguishment
OF DL v (2,312) 12,031 (47,491) (111,434)
Extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt, net of taxes ...... - 265,329 - -
Net (10S8) INCOME....cvniiiiorieiciieriie it $ 2312) $ 277,360 $ (47,491) (111,434)
Basic and diluted per share data:
Basic and diluted net loss from continuing operations ........ 3 (0.80)
Basic and diluted net income from discontinued
OPETALIONS ...t ettt 0.23 ||
Basic and diluted net 108 ........ocoooveiiiiiiiiiice e $ (0.57) H
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net (loss) 4,036 jl

(a) Reorganized Company data includes results of discontinued operations separately. Discontinued operations data has not been included for the

Predecessor Company as amounts are not material.

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.




Anacomp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Additional Accggl;lrated

Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive  Accumulated
(in thousands, except share data) Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 - PREDECESSOR COMPANY .... 14,384,089 $ 149 § 108,997 $  (1,222) §(225,560) $ (117,636)
INETTOSS .t cem e et s - - - --- (111,434) (111,434)
Translation adjustment ..o --- - -—- (8,136) --- (8,136)
Realized gain on currency swap contracts............oeovieerioceniee --- --- -- 3,424 - 3,424
Unrealized gain on currency swap contract...........ocoveoeinens - - - 332 - 532
Comprehensive loss (115,614)
Common stock issued for exercise of stock options,
warrants, and restricted Stock grants ..o 198,479 .- 3,350 - - 3,350
Common stock issued for employee stock purchases................ 38,568 -~ 510 --- 510
Common stock purchased and retired ..o, (93,200) 3) (1,628) - - (1,631)
Common stock issued for acquisitions.............coeoiveiien i, 38,262 - 95 --- --- 95
SEPTEMBER 39, 2000 - PREDECESSOR COMPANY .... 14,566,198 146 111,324 (5,402) (336,994) (230,926)
NELLOSS v coeevecreseceer s eeeseseess e eesssos oo - (47,491) (47,491)
Translation adjustment......coccvrieeiiierccer e --- - - 273) - (273)
Realized gain on currency swap contracts........oocoeoriveniciinnnn, - p— - 763 . 763
Comprehensive loss (47,001)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 - PREDECESSOR COMPANY ... 14,566,198 146 111,324 (4,912) (384,485) (277,927)
Net income for three mOnthS ..ot - - - - 277,360 277,360
Translation adjustrnent for three months ..o .- --- --- 639 --- 639
Unfunded accumulated benefit obligation...........cccoervrierri e .- - - -
Comprehensive income for three months..uieeniiien, 277,999
Reorganization {ems. .........coovceriicnireis oo (14,566,198) (146) (111,324) 4,273 107,125 (72)
NEW SLOCK ISSUAINCE «.oiviiriiieictiieee e eieere e e esee e sresesanns 4,034,034 40 96,885 --- - 96,925
DECEMBER 31, 2001 - REORGANIZED COMPANY ..... 4,034,034 40 96,885 - - 96,925
Net loss for nine months.... ... - - (2,312) (2,312)
Translation adjustment for nine months..........c.coeiiviin - -- --- 1,996 - 1,996
Unfunded accumulated benefit obligation..............c..cooooi - - - (4,832) - (4,832)
Comprehensive income for nine months .......coveirercsrivnnnes --- --- --- --- (5,148)
Common stock issued for director stock grants........ccco..ocvevveene 2,000 --- 57 .- --- 57
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 - REORGANIZED COMPANY.... 4,036,034 3 40 $ 96,942 $ (2,836 & (2,312) $ 91,834

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Anacomp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reorganized M
Company Predecessor Company
Three months
Nine months ended | ended December Year ended Year ended
September 30, 31, September 30, September 38,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Income (10S8) vcvivveeinnrinie e e $ (2,312) A 277,360 $ (47,491) $ (111,434)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Extraordinary gain on extinguishments of debt.................... - (265,329) - ---
Adjustment of assets and liabilities to fair value.................. -—- (16,916) - -
Write off of deferred debt issuance costs and unamortized
premiums and diSCOUNLS .........ccoemreriir o, --- 2,216 --- -
Asset Impairment Charges ..........c..ovveeveeeenneeiores e --- --- 28,493
Loss on sale of discontinued operations .............cc.ccoeccoeevanne, - --- - 1,636
Income from discontinued operations ...................ccccoecvnnns (913) - -
Depreciation and amortization ................c.ccceveerieeneeiveennnn, 12,999 7,194 31,258 51,406
Amortization of debt fees, premiums and discounts ............. 516 92 1,398 653
Utilization of deferred tax asset without rate benefit ............ 1,994 - -
Non-cash legal settlement charge...............cccoovoererernneirinenn. - - 1,502 -
Non-cash COMPENSAtIoN .....c.oovvververriiriiie e --- 1,277
Other non-cash charges........cccovviiiiiicec o, 358 349 --- --
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and other receivables............occecevr e (280) 3,092 11,045 22,935
TOVENIOTIES ...coeeieie et et (148) 739 3,332 9,161
Prepaid expenses and other assets..........ccccoevevireririiinnn, (590) 332 (2,005) 3,631
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities ..... 2,173 (3,733) (13,874) (32,786)
ACCTUE TNLETESL +....voocveeeeoverissese oot (13) (387) 33,321 586
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations.... 13,784 5,009 18,486 (24,442)
Net operating cash provided by (used in) discontinued
OPETALIONS .....vivcvirrierceneire et et e 2,797 - - (4,623)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities........ 16,581 5,009 18,486 (29,065)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment for continuing -
OPETALIONS ...eovtereiii ettt e (2,727) (1,075) (4,825) (18,124)
Purchases of property and equipment for discontinued
OPEIALIONS ... receccrcietee et ettt (48) - - ---
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations and other
ASSELS Lviiiiiieer et et “-- --- --- 550
Payments to acquire companies and customer rights .............. - (1,593) (1,833)
Net cash used in investing activities..............oocoooeunnnnn, (2,775) (1,075) (6,418) (19,407)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common StOCK .....occcvrververnicnnan - - 3,419
Proceeds from liquidation of currency swap contracts............. --- 763 3,424
(Payment on) proceeds from revolving line of credit ............... (23,100) (2,000) 2,575) 48,750
Repurchases of common Stock ......ooovvvvciciiiiinienns --- - --- (1,631)
Principal payments on long-term debt - - (1,083)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities........ (23,100 (2,000 (1,812) 52,879
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash.........c.c......oviins 725 637 64 (1,563)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents...........c.cccceunn. (8,569) 2,571 10,320 2,844
Less increase in cash from discontinued operations........................ (2,749) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period................cc......... 26,879 24,308 13,988 11,144
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period..........ccccooconricnriiiionnes $ 15,561 $ 26,879 $ 24,308 S 13,588




SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
Nine months ended Three monthks ended Year ended Year ended
. September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Cash paid during period for:
INEETESE cevit et $ 2,175 $ 1,434 $ 7,138 $ 40,617
INCOMIE tAXES 1.vvviiiiiieiccrs et et er et $ 2,208 $ 459 $ 2,569 $ 3,728

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
Nine months ended Three months ended Year ended Year ended
. September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Stock issued for acqUISItIONS.....oveccirvriveiiereenrivivecnan, 3 --- - 5 --- $ 95
Unrealized gain on currency swap contract..........c.cc.cov.c...n. $ --- -~ 3 --- $ 532

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Anacomp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTE 1.
COMPANY OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

Anacomp®, Inc. provides comprehensive information outsourcing, maintenance support, and imaging and print
solutions for businesses and organizations around the globe. We primarily serve customers in the financial services
and insurance sectors and in the case of MVS the technology sector.

Financial Restructuring and Reorganization

On October 19, 2001, we filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code, together with a prepackaged plan of reorganization (the “Plan™), with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the
Southern District of California. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan on December 10, 2001, and we
emerged from bankruptcy effective December 31, 2001.

The primary benefits of our bankruptcy were the elimination of $310 million of debt, related accrued interest of
$52.3 million and the related annual interest expense of approximately $34 million. Additionally, our credit facility
was amended such that we cured previous events of default and we continue to have the ability to borrow under the
credit facility. Borrowings under the facility are subject to revised terms and restrictions, and we are required to
make mandatory quarterly payments that reduce the borrowing base of the credit facility (see Note 4).

Under the Plan, our publicly traded 10-7/8% senior subordinated notes, related accrued interest and existing
Anacomp common stock (14,566,198 shares) were canceled, and new common stock was issued. New Class A
Common Stock was distributed to the holders of the notes, as well as reserved for issuance as incentive
compensation to Anacomp personnel. New Class B Common Stock was issued and distributed to holders of
previously existing Anacomp common stock.

Pursuant to the reorganization, we are authorized to issue 40,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock, 787,711
shares of Class B Common Stock and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Terms and conditions of the Class A and
Class B Common Stock are identical, including voting rights, dividends, when and if declared, and liquidation rights,
subject to any preference of preferred stock as may be issued in the future. Class B Common Stock is also subject to
potential further dilution if additional shares of Class B Common Stock are required to be issued in satisfaction of
claims pursuant to the reorganization. Preferred stock is authorized to be issued in one or more series with terms to
be established at the time of issuance by our Board of Directors.

In exchange for the notes totaling $310 million and related accrued interest totaling $52.3 million, holders of the
notes received 4,030,000 shares of new Class A Common Stock.

For each share of common stock outstanding immediately prior to the emergence from bankruptcy, common
shareholders received .0002769 shares of new Class B Common Stock. As a result, 4,034 shares of new Class B
Common Stock were issued. In addition, for each share of new Class B Common Stock issued, these shareholders
received 194.12 warrants. Each warrant is exercisable for a period of five years for the purchase of one share of the
new Class B Common Stock at an exercise price of $61.54 per share. As a result, 783,077 warrants to purchase
Class B Common Stock were issued.

Holders of Class A Common Stock own 99.9% of our equity and those holding Class B Common Stock own 0.1%.
Also, as a result of the Chapter 11 reorganization, the following occurred:

all unexercised options were canceled;

prior stock option plans were terminated;

executory contracts were assumed or rejected,;

trade creditors were paid in the ordinary course of business and were not impaired;

o  members of a new Board of Directors were designated by the holders of the subordinated notes;

o O o o




e 403,403 shares of new Class A Common Stock were authorized for use in the establishment of new stock
option plans; and

¢ the senior secured revolving credit facility was amended (see Note 4).

Under bankruptcy law, an executory contract is an agreement between a debtor and third party under which, as of the
date of a debtor's Chapter 11 petition, material performance on the agreement remains due from both the debtor and
non-debtor party, such that the failure of either side to perform its obligations under the agreement would excuse the
other party from further performance. The Bankruptcy Code permits a Chapter 11 debtor to assume (i.e. agree to
continue to be bound both during the Chapter 11 case and following emergence) or reject (breach and no longer be
bound during the Chapter 11 case or thereafter) any executory contract. We assumed all of our executory contracts
under our confirmed plan of reorganization except one, which was a nonresidential lease of real property.

The U.S. Bankruptcy Court issued its final decree on September 27, 2002 closing the Chapter 11 case. There are no
remaining claims or unrecorded obligations related to the bankruptcy proceedings.

Basis of Presentation

At December 31, 2001, as a result of our emergence from bankruptcy, we adopted Fresh Start Reporting in
accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization under the
Bankruptcy Code.” Fresh Start Reporting resulted in material changes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2001, including adjustment of assets and liabilities to estimated fair values, the valuation of equity
based on the reorganization value of the ongoing business, and the recording of an asset for reorganization value in
excess of the fair value of the separately identifiable assets and liabilities (similar to goodwill).

The accompanying financial statements include historical information from prior to December 31, 2001, the effective
date we emerged from bankruptcy, and are identified as financial statements of the Predecessor Company. The
Consolidated Balance Sheet, Statements of Operations and the Statement of Cash Flows as of and for the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2002, represent the Reorganized Company after adopting Fresh Start Reporting and also
reflect our Switzerland subsidiaries as discontinued operations. Due to our reorganization, the implementation of
Fresh Start Reporting (see Note 3), and our presentation of discontinued operations for the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2002, the financial statements for the Reorganized Company are not comparable to those of the
Predecessor Company. We did not reflect the discontinued operations presentation relating to the sale of
Switzerland in the financial statements of the Predecessor Company due to the immateriality of such results in those
periods.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anacomp and our wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
financial statements, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals
and the Fresh Start adjustments described in Note 3) necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows for all periods presented.

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Estimates have been
prepared on the basis of the most current available information and actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anacomp and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.




Cash ang Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents primarily represent highly liquid investments, with original maturities of 90 days or less, in money

market funds that are convertible to a known amount of cash and carry an insignificant interest rate risk. The
Company has periodically maintained balances in various operating accounts in excess of federally insured limits.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company sells its products to customers primarily in the United States, Canada, Europe and Asia. The Company
maintains a reserve for potential credit losses and historically such losses have been within management's estimates.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined by methods approximating the first-
in, first-out basis.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, which includes leasehold improvements, is recorded at cost and depreciated or amortized
using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter
of their estimated useful life or the remaining term of the related lease. Processing equipment and other property and
equipment have useful lives ranging from two to twelve years. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as
incurred.

Software Costs

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 86, "Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed," software production costs incurred from the time
technological feasibility is reached until the product is available for general release to customers are capitalized and
reported at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. As of September 30, 2002 and 2001, no capitalized
software costs remain on the Balance Sheet.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected to be payable for the current year. A deferred tax asset
and/or lability is computed for both the expected future impact of temporary differences between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for the expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax loss and
tax credit carryforwards. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected
to be realized in future tax returns.

Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all assets and liabilities of Anacomp's international operations are translated at year-end exchange rates;
revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses are charged to operations as incurred. A foreign currency transaction gain of $0.3
million was recorded for the nine months ended September 30, 2002, and a foreign currency transaction loss of $0.2
million was recorded for the three months ended December 31, 2001. Foreign currency transaction losses for the
years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 totaled $0.1 million, and $0.8 million, respectively. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses are included as a component of “Other income (expense)’ in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Goodwill
The excess of purchase price over net assets of businesses acquired ("goodwill") was amortized on the straight-line

method over the estimated periods of future benefit through December 31, 2001, and has been eliminated as part of
our reorganization and implementation of Fresh Start accounting (see Note 3).




Debt Issuance Costs

The Company capitalizes all costs related to its issuance of debt and amortizes those costs using the effective interest
method over the life of the related debt instruments. Unamortized debt issuance costs were $0.5 million and $3.5
million at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease of $3 million was due primarily to the write-off
of unamortized deferred issuance costs on the 10-7/8% senior subordinated notes remaining on the balance sheet
prior to the implementation of Fresh Start accounting. Unamortized debt issuance costs are included in "Other
assets" in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the nine months ended September 30, 2002, the
three months ended December 31, 2001, and the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company amortized
$0.5 million, $0.2 million, $1.8 million and $1.6 million, respectively, of debt issuance costs that are included in
"Interest expense and fee amortization" in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenue Recognition

Contract revenue for the development and implementation of document services solutions under contracts is
recognized over the contract period based on output measures as defined by deliverable items identified in the
contract. Provisions for estimated losses on contracts, if any, are made during the period when the loss becomes
probable and can be reasonably estimated.

The Company adopted the provisions of Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements™ during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, which did not have a material impact on the Company’s results
of operations. In accordance with SOP 97-2, "Software Revenue Recognition", revenues from software license
agreements are recognized, provided that all of the following conditions are met: a non-cancelable license
agreement has been signed, the software has been delivered, the fees are fixed or determinable, there are no material
uncertainties regarding customer acceptance, collection of the resulting receivable is deemed probable and the risk of
concession is deemed remote, and no other significant vendor obligations exist. For contracts with multiple
obligations, the Company unbundles the respective components to determine revenue recognition using vendor-
specific objective evidence (VSOE). In instances where VSOE cannot be determined, the related fees are deferred
and amortized over the life of the contract.

Revenues from sales of products and services or from leases of equipment under sales-type leases are recorded based
on shipment of products (and transfer of risk of loss), commencement of the lease, or performance of services.
Under sales-type leases, the present value of all payments due under the lease contracts is recorded as revenue, cost
of sales is charged with the book value of the equipment plus installation costs, and future interest income is deferred
and recognized over the lease term. Revenue from sales-type leases totaled $0.3 million and $1.7 million for the
three months ended December 31, 2001 and nine months ended September 30, 2002, respectively. Operating lease
revenues are recognized during the applicable period of customer usage. Revenue from maintenance contracts is
recognized ratably over the period of the related contract.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company previously evaluated potential impairment of long-lived assets and long-lived assets to be disposed of
in accordance with SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to be Disposed Of'. SFAS No. 121 established procedures for review of recoverability and measurement of
impairment (if necessary) of long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles held and used by an entity. SFAS
No. 121 required that those assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the respective asset may not be fully recoverable. SFAS No. 121 also required that long-
lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be disposed of be reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less estimated selling costs. On December 31, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, and which supercedes SFAS No. 121,

The Company recorded asset impairment charges in 2000 of $28.5 million (see Note 8).
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Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Engineering costs associated specifically with research
and development amounted to $3.4 million, $0.9 million, $3.6 million and $6.3 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002, the three months ended December 31, 2001, and the years ended September 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The Company supports several engineering processes, including basic technological research,
service offering and product development, and sustaining engineering for its existing products.

Income or Loss Per Share

Basic income or loss per share is computed based upon the weighted average number of shares of Anacomp’s
common stock outstanding during the period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2002, potentially dilutive
securities include 783,077 outstanding warrants to purchase Class B Common Stock, which were issued as part of
the reorganization. These warrants were excluded from diluted income per share as they were anti-dilutive using the
treasury stock method. Basic and diluted net income or loss for periods prior to the nine months ended September
30, 2002 have not been presented as they are not comparable to subsequent periods due to the implementation of
Fresh Start Reporting (see Note 3).

Management Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates have been prepared on the basis of the
most current available information and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements

Pursuant to Statement of Position 90-7, Anacomp has implemented the provisions of accounting principles required
to be adopted within twelve months of the adoption of Fresh Start Reporting as of December 31, 2001, including the
following standards, however, excluding SFAS No. 146, which is not effective until after December 31, 2002:

On October 3, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, and
which supercedes SFAS No. 121, SFAS No. 144 also reduces the threshold for discontinued operations reporting to
a component of an entity rather than a segment of a business as required under Accounting Principles Bulletin No.
30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” The adoption of SFAS No. 144 on
December 31, 2001 did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. However, as a
result of the changes whereby a component of an entity can qualify for discontinued operations presentation, the sale
of our Switzerland subsidiary, effective October 1, 2002 (see Note 7) required such presentation whereas under APB
30 it would not have qualified. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.144, we have separately disclosed the
results of operations of our Switzerland subsidiaries for the 9 months ended September 30, 2002. We did not
separately disclose the results of operations of our Switzerland subsidiaries for the three months ended December 31,
2001, or for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, as the related amounts were deemed to be immaterial for
each of the respective periods.

On July 30, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities
and nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” The principal difference between
Statement 146 and Issue 94-3 relates to Statement 146's requirements for recognition of a liability for a cost
associated with an exit or disposal activity. Statement 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit
or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as
generally defined in Issue 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity's commitment to an exit plan. A fundamental
conclusion reached by the FASB in this Statement is that an entity's commitment to a plan, by itself, does not create




an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Therefore, this Statement eliminates the definition and
requirements for recognition of exit costs in Issue 94-3.

This Statement also establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement of the liability. Severance pay
under Statement 146, in many cases, would be recognized over time rather than up front. The FASB decided that if
the benefit arrangement requires employees to render future service beyond a "minimum retention period” a liability
should be recognized as employees render service over the future service period even if the benefit formula used to
calculate an employee'’s termination benefit is based on length of service. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged.
We anticipate adopting SFAS No. 146 in the second quarter of fiscal year 2003 and do not expect it to have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”, and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 beginning January 1, 2002 upon
application of Fresh Start Reporting (See Note 3). As a result of the implementation of Fresh Start Reporting, all
goodwill on the books at December 31, 2001 was eliminated. Under SFAS No. 142, purchased goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually.
Accordingly, the Company does not amortize goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives as of January 1,
2002. Intangible assets with finite lives, primarily customer contracts and customer relationships and proprietary
technology will be amortized over their useful lives.

The following table reconciles our net earnings before the cumulative effect of change in accounting to net earnings
adjusted for the amortization of intangible assets and goodwill. Due to our net loss tax position in prior years no tax
benefit was realized from this expense.

Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
Nine months Three months
ended ended Year ended Year ended
September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,

(in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Net loss (income) as reported $ (2312 $ 277,360 $ (47,491 $ (111,434)
Goodwill amortization --- 2,629 10,647 17,675
Net loss (income) excluding
effect of goodwill amortization $ (2312 $ 279,989 § (36,844) $  (93,759)

We completed our annual goodwill impairment test as of September 30, 2002 and found no impairment.

NOTE 3.
FRESH START REPORTING:

Our enterprise value of $150 million before consideration of debt after reorganization at December 31, 2001 was
determined based on the consideration of many factors and various valuation methods, including:

discounted cash flow analysis;

selected publicly-traded company market multiples;

selected acquisition transaction multiples; and

applicable ratios and valuation techniques believed by management to be representatwe of our business and
industry.

® ® 6 @

The cash flow valuation utilized five-year projections assuming a weighted average cost of capital rate of
approximately 13.5%. A terminal value was determined using a multiple of our estimated fifth year earnings before
interest, other income, reorganization items, asset impairment and restructuring charges, taxes, depreciation and
amortization, and extraordinary items (referred to as “EBITDA”), together with the net present value of the five-year
projected cash flows. The excess of the reorganization value over the fair value of identifiable net assets of $73.2
million, as adjusted, is reported as “Reorganization value in excess of identifiable net assets” and will not be subject
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to future amortization (similar to goodwill) in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” as issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”).

For enterprise valuation purposes, in January 2002 we estimated our revenues and cash flows through fiscal year
2006. We projected continued declines in Computer Output to Microfiche (“COM”) and COM-related revenues at a
rate of approximately 20% annually and growth in digital and Multi-Vendor Services and product offerings. Our
projections also assumed the following:

=}
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the elimination of our subordinated notes and related interest;

continued reduction of costs through consolidation of facilities and adjustments to our labor force to
maintain COM gross margin levels;

the completion of our bankruptcy and related legal and professional costs; and

our recent cost reduction activities and restructurings.

In developing the assumptions underlying the cash flow projections, management considered such factors as
historical results as well as its best estimates of expected future market conditions based on information available as
of December 31, 2001. Actual future events and results could differ substantially from management’s estimates,
assumptions and projections including, but not limited to, the matters discussed above. Unfavorable changes
compared to our projections used for Fresh Start Reporting purposes could result in future impairments of our
reorganization asset and identifiable intangible assets.

In the nine month period ended September 30, 2002, we recorded pre-reorganization liabilities for pension
obligations of $1.4 million.

As a result of Fresh Start Reporting, identifiable intangible assets were valued and consist of the following to be
amortized over the useful lives indicated:

(dollars in thousands; unaudited) Life in Years September 30, 2002
Customer contracts and related customer relationships ............... 10 3 7,600
Digital technology and intellectual property........c..cocecveververerenen. 3 3,100
COM technology and intellectual property..........occoovvvincennne, 10 1,300
COM production SOtWATE ............c.oeveivererieriesesienses e e esennas 5 300
TOtal.o o 12,300
Less: accumulated amortization.............ccoerervrverreerenrisnssnsennes (1,487)
$ 10813

Based on the intangible asset values noted above, related amortization expense will be approximately $2 million
annually for the next three years.

The reorganization and the adoption of Fresh Start Reporting resulted in the following adjustments to our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2001:

Predecessor Reorganization and Fresh Start Reorganized
Company Adjustments Company
December 31, December 31,
(in thousands; unaudited) 2001 Debit Credit 2001
Assets
Total current assets .........covveveeeenenn. $ 78,261 $ - 3 --- $ 78,261
Property and equipment, net............. 30,565 2483 (@ - 33,048
Reorganization value in excess of
identifiable assets.........occcevvenreene. -—- 75,193 (o 75,193
GoodWill......cocvvreneriiiiirecenne 83,644 - 83,644 () -
Intangible assets ...........ooocerereinrnnee. --- 12,300 @ --- 12,300
Oher aSSEtS co..ve.verveeererereerereeeneeneon. 8,179 --- 3,142 (o 5,037
$ 200,649 $ 89,976 $ 86,786 $ 203,839




Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Current portion of senior secured

revolving credit facility ................ $ 53,075 3§ 43825 (p -
10-7/8% senior subordinated notes

PAYAbIe......o e 310,926 310,926 (g -—
Accounts payable ........ccccoerencnnenn 11,051 --- -
Accrued compensation, benefits

and withholdings .......c.cccccoevence. 16,275 - -
Accrued income taxes........occvverenenns 4,220 3,027 ) ---
Accrued INterest .......cooceceivvererenneenenn, 52,267 52,254 () -
Other accrued liabilities .................... 22,642 LO75 -
Total current liabilities............o.o...... 470,456 411,107 -
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term portion of senior

secured revolving credit facility ... -e- - 43,825
Unfunded accumulated benefit

obligation.........ocoevrirrccrreninns - --- 1,401
Other long-term liabilities.................. 10,222 7,883 -
Total long-term liabilities ................. 10,222 7,883 45,226
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Common StocK .....coccoevverneireevrernnnns 146 146 () 40
Additional paid-in capital ................. 111,324 111,324 @ 96,885
Accumulated other comprehensive

0SS ...t (4,273) (1,401) @ 5,674
Accumulated deficit ...........ccooovver, (387,226) 387,226
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)... (280,029) 112,871 489,825

$ 200,649 $ 531,861 535,051

Explanations of the above adjustment columns are as follows:

a) To adjust property and equipment to estimated fair value.

b) To reflect write off of excess of purchase price over net assets of businesses acquired.

®

)

(m)
(m)

O
0

$ 9,250

11,051

16,275
1,193
13
21,567
59,349

43825

1,401
2,339
47,565

40
96,885

96,925
$ 203,839

—_———————n

¢) To establish the reorganization value in excess of identifiable assets. The amounts are calculated below:

(in thousands; unaudited)

Amount

Senior secured revolving credit facility .......c.coocovcerevcinnnncnn.
NEW EQUILY..c.viieiveiniecrrcrnne et teinec s rerebesesessorsnesarenenas

53,075
96,925

Enterprise value. ..o et
Plus: fair value of identifiable liabilities.........c.ccovveveveeveenenenne,

Less: fair value of identifiable assets .........covvervvvivrriceerenecieniens

150,000
53,839
(128,646)

Reorganization value in excess of identifiable assets

75,193

d) To establish separately identifiable intangible assets at estimated fair value.

e) To write off deferred costs on senior subordinated debt canceled in bankruptcy.
f) To reclassify portion of revolving credit facility from current to long-term, consistent with principal

repayment terms of the amended facility agreement.

g) To write off the senior subordinated notes canceled in bankruptcy and related unamortized premium and

discount.
h) To adjust accrued income taxes to amounts currently payable.
i)  To write off accrued interest related to the senior subordinated notes.
j)  To adjust other accrued liabilities to estimated fair values.
k) To adjust other long-term liabilities to estimated fair values.
1) To eliminate stockholders’ deficit of the Predecessor Company.




m) To reflect issuance of 4,030,000 shares of new Class A Common Stock and 4,034 shares of new Class B
Common Stock at estimated fair value.
n) To reflect unfunded accumulated pension benefit obligation.

During the nine month period ended September 30, 2002, approximately $2 million of pre-reorganization net
deferred tax assets were utilized as deductions for tax return purposes and, therefore, reported as a reduction of the
reorganization asset to $73.2 million at September 30, 2002.

The extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt, net of taxes, for the period ended December 31, 2001, is
calculated as follows:

(in thousands; unaudited) Amount
Carrying value of senior subordinated notes $ 310,000
Carrying value of related accrued interest 52,254
Issuance of new common stock (96,925)
Extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt $ 265,329

The holders of the senior subordinated notes received 99.9% of the new equity of the Reorganized Company;
therefore, the net equity of the Reorganized Company was used as the basis for consideration exchanged in
determining the extraordinary gain on extinguishment of debt. There is no income statement tax effect from the
extinguishment of debt (see Note 18).

In accordance with Statement of Position 90-7, transactions of the Predecessor Company resulting from the Chapter
11 reorganization are reported separately as reorganization items in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of
Operations for the period ended December 31, 2001, and are summarized below:

Three Months
Ended December

(in thousands; unaudited) 31, 2001
Adjustment of assets and liabilities to fair value $ 16,916
Write off of deferred debt issuance costs and
unamortized premiums and discounts (2,216)
Professional fees and other reorganization costs (1,023)
Settlement of facility lease contract (349)
Reorganization items $§ 13,328

NOTE 4.
SENIOR SECURED REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY:

Concurrent with the emergence from bankruptcy on December 31, 2001, Anacomp and Fleet National Bank, as
agent, and its syndicate of lenders (collectively, “the Bank Group”) entered into an Amended and Restated
Revolving Credit Agreement. The amended facility included a $58.9 million credit commitment, with a $53.1
million sublimit for direct borrowing and a $5.8 million letter of credit sublimit. In accordance with the new
agreement, the $53.1 million direct borrowing sublimit was reduced to $44.8 million as of September 30, 2002 as a
result of scheduled principal repayments, issuance of a new letter of credit, and the sale of assets. The credit
commitment will be further reduced by future periodic scheduled amounts and by 85% of the net proceeds from the
sale of the Switzerland subsidiaries. The facility is available for new borrowings when borrowings are below the
direct borrowing sublimit.

At September 30, 2002, the outstanding revolving credit borrowings were $30.0 million (plus outstanding standby
letters of credit of $6.3 million). During the nine-month period ended September 30, 2002, we made cash payments
totaling $23.1 million, which is $16.1 million greater than our scheduled repayments, resulting in $14.8 million of
borrowing capacity, including the effect of other commitment reductions.

The maturity date of the amended facility is June 30, 2003, with an extension to December 31, 2003 upon the receipt
of at least $4 million net proceeds from the sale of the Switzerland subsidiaries. The receipt of the required proceeds
is expected to occur in early 2003. Upon receipt of the net proceeds, we will be required to permanently reduce the
borrowing sublimit of the credit facility commitment by 85% of the net sale proceeds. Substantially all of the net
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proceeds will be used to reduce the outstanding revolving credit borrowings. The credit facility commitment was
permanently reduced by $0.8 million upon the initial receipt of proceeds from the sale in October 2002.

The amended facility bears interest at a base rate equal to the higher of a) the annual rate of interest announced from
time to time by Fleet National Bank as its best rate, or b) one-half of one percent above the Federal Funds Effective
Rate, for the portion of the facility equal to a Formula Borrowing Base (“FBB”). The FBB equals 80% of eligible
accounts, which include U.S. and Canadian accounts receivable. The rate of interest is three percentage points
higher than the base rate for the facility balance outstanding in excess of the FBB. Interest is due and payable
monthly in arrears. The interest rate was 4.75% for the FBB portion and 7.75% for the excess portion at September
30, 2002. At September 30, 2002, the FBB was $15.3 million and the excess of borrowings over the FBB was $14.7
million.

The credit facility is secured by virtually all Anacomp assets and 65% of the capital stock of our foreign subsidiaries.
The facility contains covenants relating to limitations on the following:

capital expenditures;

additional debt;

open market purchases of our common stock;
mergers and acquisitions; and

liens and dividends.

® & e @ o

The credit facility also is subject to minimum EBITDA, interest coverage and leverage ratio covenants. In addition,
we are required to remit to the Bank Group the net proceeds of any capital asset sale.

Effective December 19, 2002, we signed an amendment to the revolving credit agreement. The amendment modifies
certain financial covenants to accommodate the sale of our Switzerland operations and current business plans. Other
changes to the agreement included a permanent reduction to the credit facility commitment of $10.0 million, a
decrease in future quarterly commitment reductions, and provisions for acquisitions and/or divestitures under
specified conditions.

Under the current facility as amended, the facility commitment and the direct borrowings sublimit will be
permanently reduced in the future as follows:

$1.125 million on December 31, 2002

$1.125 million on March 31, 2003;

$1.25 million on June 30, 2003;

$1.25 million on September 30, 2003 (assurming that the maturity date is extended as planned).

¢ @ o e

In connection with the December 31, 2001 facility amendment and restatement, we paid a fee of $0.8 million that has
been capitalized, is included in “Other assets” in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at
September 30, 2002, and is being amortized through June 30, 2003.

NOTE 5.
SENIOR SUBORDINATED NOTES:

The Predecessor Company had outstanding $310 million of publicly traded 10-7/8% senior subordinated notes and
related accrued interest of $52.3 million at October 19, 2001, As detailed in Note 1, the notes and related accrued
interest were extinguished in the reorganization. The accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
period ended December 31, 2001 includes approximately $1.7 million of interest expense on the notes through
October 19, 2001, the date the Predecessor Company filed for bankruptcy. Had interest on the senior subordinated
notes continued to accrue beyond the October 19, 2001 bankruptcy filing date, we would have recognized an
additional $6.9 million in interest expense through December 31, 2001.
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NOTE 6.
RESTRUCTURING CHARGES:

In fiscal year 2002, we recorded a restructuring charge of $2.1 million related to the reorganization of our operations
from two business units to one. We reorganized our workforce by combining the field organizations of Document
Solutions and Technical Services into one organization, establishing an executive level position to oversee all sales
and marketing activities and implementing a single support group for our data centers, Web Presentment operations,
field services operations and process quality. The restructuring charges included $1.6 million in employee severance
and termination-related costs for approximately 100 employees, all of whom have left the company. The severance
payments will be completed by the second quarter of fiscal 2003. The restructuring charges also include
approximately $0.4 million for the closure of a data center for which payments will continue until the lease expires in
July 2004. Of the $0.4 million, $69 thousand represents a non-cash charge to write off the net book value of
leasehold improvements located in the closed data center.

In the second and third quarters of 2000, we effected a reorganization of our workforce in the United States and
Europe along our lines of business, reorganized parts of our corporate staff and phased out our manufacturing
operations. To accomplish the reorganization of our workforce and corporate staff, we reassessed job
responsibilities and personnel requirements in each of our continuing business units and corporate staff. The
assessment resulted in substantial permanent personnel reductions and involuntary terminations throughout our
organization, primarily in our European operations and our corporate and manufacturing staff. We recorded
restructuring charges of $14.6 million related to these actions. Employee severance and termination-related costs
were for approximately 300 employees, all of whom have left the company; we have paid all related severance.
Other fees relate to professional fees associated with negotiations to terminate facility leases and other costs
associated with implementation of our new business unit structure and the reorganization of our business units into
separate entities. We have also paid these fees. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2002, we vacated our Japanese
facility, terminated substantially all related personnel and undertook other procedures to wind down our Japanese
subsidiary. As a result, we reversed approximately $1 million of fiscal 2000 business restructuring reserves due to
favorable circumstances related to the shutdown. Our closure costs to vacate the facility in Japan, costs to fulfill our
contract obligations and severance and related professional costs up to that time were less than we anticipated at the
time we recorded the accrual. As of September 30, 2002, the remaining liability related to international facility costs
is expected to be paid by the end of December 2003.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2001, we reversed $1.2 million of business restructuring reserves ($333 thousand
from the 1998 restructuring and $874 thousand from the 2000 restructuring) primarily related to favorable
experience in employee separations and facility-related costs, as well as reduced levels of professional and other
fees.

In fiscal 1998, we recorded restructuring charges of $8.5 million and reserves of $15.2 million related to the First
Image acquisition. This liability has been fully paid as of June 30, 2002.

The restructuring reserves are included as a component of “Other accrued liabilities” in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.




The following tables present the activity and balances of the restructuring reserves from September 30, 2001 to
September 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year 2002 Restructuring

Payments and

Reorganized Company December 31, 2001 Adjustments Deductions September 30, 2002
Employee Separations ) - $ 1,638 M (1,405) $ 233
Facility Closing --- 443 (118) 325

$ --- $ 2,081 3 (1,523) $ 558

Fiscal Year 2000 Restructuring

Reorganized Company December 31, 2001 Adjustments Cash Payments September 30, 2002
Facility Closing 3 120 $ --- 3 (43) $ 77
Contract Obligations 170 -- (44) 126
$ 290 $ $ (87) $ 203
Predecessor Company September 30, 2001 Adjustments Cash Payments December 31, 2001
Employee Separations $ 269 $ (214) $ (55) b ---
Facility Closing 281 (149) (12) 120
Contract Obligations 511 (307) (34) 170
Professional and Other 313 (313) —
$ 1,374 $ (983) $ (101) $ 290

Fiscal Year 1998 Restructuring

Reorganized Company December 31, 2001 Adjustments Cash Payments September 30, 2002
Facility Closing $ 160 3 - 3 (160) $ ---
3 160 $ --- 3 (160) 3 -
Predecessor Company September 30, 2001 Adjustments Cash Payments December 31, 2001
Facility Closing $ 276 $ (39) $ (7) $ 160
Other 10 (10)
$ 286 $ (49) 3 a7 $ 160
NOTE 7.

SALE OF SWITZERLAND AND OTHER OPERATIONS:

In May 2001, we announced our intention to sell all or parts of our European document-management business,
Document Solutions International (IDSI). A sale of all of DSI is not currently planned. However, we completed a
sale of our Switzerland subsidiaries and operations on October 18, 2002. We signed a sales agreement on September
27,2002. The acquiring company assumed operational responsibility effective October 1, 2002.

Under the terms of the sale agreement, we sold all of the outstanding shares of our two Swiss subsidiaries,
Cominformatic AG and Anacomp Technical Services AG, to edotech Ltd. (a UK company) at a sales price of CHF
26.7 million (Swiss francs).

The sales price is payable as follows: CHF 4.6 million, or approximately $3.1 million, at closing; CHF 18.2 million

upon completion of the Cominformatic share exchange, no later than six months from the date closing; CHF 1.1
million on or before April 18, 2003; and CHF 2.8 million within the next 18 months upon expiration of certain
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indemnification claim periods. The costs of the sale are estimated to be $2.1 million. Effectively all of the net
proceeds (i.e. sales price less sale costs) will be used to reduce the revolving balance outstanding and 85% of such
proceeds will permanently reduce the total borrowing commitment under the terms of the senior secured revolving
credit facility. Upon receipt of at least $4 million in net proceeds from the Switzerland sale, the maturity date of the
credit facility will be extended from June 30, 2003 to December 31, 2003,

In addition, we sold two smaller operating units effective in the third quarter of fiscal 2002. A loss of $331 thousand
was recognized and reported as Selling, General and Administrative expenses in that period.

The assets and liabilities of the Swiss and other operations have been classified separately as “Assets of discontinued
operations” and “Liabilities of discontinued operations” in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30,
2002. The net assets of the disposed operating units were summarized as follows:

September 30,
_(dollars in thousands) 2002

CaSh. oo $ 2,749
Accounts and notes receivable ................. 2,288
INVENtOries......vviviiereei e 1,067
Property, plant and equipment ................. 5,227
Other assets ..o.ocovivieeiieven e S 696
Accounts payable and other accrued

HabIlItIES ..vei v (4,241)
Total net assets $ 7,786

Similarly, the results of operations of the Switzerland and other operations have been reported separately as “Income
from discontinued operations, net of taxes” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002. The results of operations reported below for the three months ended December 31, 2001, and
the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 have not been segregated as discontinued operations in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the respective periods as they were not material to the operating results of
Anacomp in total.

Reorganized "
Company Predecessor Company
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended

September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Revenues $ 20,440 $ 7,505 $ 24,579 $ 33,528
Income before taxes 1,212 869 1,778 1,977
Income taxes 299 60 93 201
Net income 3 913 $ 809 $ 1,685 $ 1,776

NOTE 8.
ASSET IMPAIRMENT CHARGES:

During fiscal year 2000, we announced a restructuring of the DatagraphiX business unit, the merger of this unit into
the Technical Services business unit and the discontinuance of manufacturing operations effective October 1, 2000.
In fiscal year 2000, we recorded a charge to cost of sales of $9 million for inventory write-downs resulting from the
decision to discontinue DatagraphiX manufacturing operations.

During fiscal year 2000, we wrote off a note receivable with a carrying value of $2.7 million generated from the sale
of our Magnetics division in fiscal 1999 due to the declining operating results and liquidity of the acquirer.
Additionally, due to our overall liquidity position, we abandoned a new software product, as well as our Image
Mouse product. As a result, we wrote off approximately $1.6 million of associated capitalized software development
costs and approximately $0.7 million of specialized manufacturing assets, respectively. Further, we recorded
impairments of manufacturing equipment and leasehold improvements totaling approximately $2.0 million as a result
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of the discontinuation of manufacturing operations effective October 1, 2000 pertaining to the former DétagraphiX
segment.

We recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $21.4 million related to our Document Solutions International
businesses. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, we reached an agreement in principle with the Bank Group to
amend the Facility and to provide Anacomp with a waiver, which was in effect through October 26, 2000, and
among other restrictions, prevented us from remitting funds to our foreign subsidiaries. Based on the inability to
support our foreign subsidiaries by the terms of the forbearance agreement, and based on our liquidity issues and the
restructuring of our operations into four separate business units, we reviewed our expected future cash flows of our
foreign operations assuming an inability to invest in or support their cash flows from the U.S. The result of these
reviews indicated that our Document Solutions International businesses would have negative cash flows from
operations and operating losses that would worsen.

Due to the above concerns, we announced in May 2001 our intention to sell all or parts of our European document-
management business, Document Solutions International (DSI). A sale of all of DSI is not currently planned; and we
anticipate recovering the net book value of any DSI assets sold. See Note 7 for a discussion of our sale of Swiss
subsidiaries in October 2002. As a result of the expected future negative cash flows from operations and the
preliminary expressions of interest in the Document Solutions International businesses, the only long-lived asset that
was deemed to be impaired is the goodwill associated with the Document Solutions International businesses.

Asset impairment charges recorded in fiscal year 2000 are summarized as follows:

Year Ended
Assets (in thousands) September 30, 2000
GOoOAWILL....ooiiiiiii e b b 3 21,390
Magnetics note receivable ..........cccocovriiiiei e 2,738
Development @SSetS........ccoiviviiiiiiririie e e 2,338
Leasehold improvements and equipment............ccccoecrerrineeiecncennen, 2,027

3 28,493

As reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Company had goodwill related to the following
acquisitions: ‘

Business Acquisition (in thousands) September 30, 2001
First Image (15 year amortization period) ......cc.cocoocviircvivninrniercninenes $ 77,542
Litton Adesso Software, Inc. (7 year amortization period)................... 7,408
All Others (3 to 5 year amortization periods) ......ccocooivvvevvieriiieceiianins 1,335

3 86,285

As explained in Note 1, we emerged from bankruptcy effective December 31, 2001, and we have implemented Fresh
Start Reporting. Under Fresh Start accounting, we have established a new basis of accounting for the Reorganized
Company that eliminated the goodwill asset and established a reorganization value in excess of identifiable assets.

NOTE 9.
SALE OF THE MAGNETICS DIVISION:

In fiscal year 1999, we sold our Magnetics Division. The sale was effective June 1, 1999, and the sales price of $40
million included $37 million in cash at closing and an interest-bearing $3 million subordinated note. In connection
with the sale of the division, we agreed to provide administrative support to the acquirer in Japan, The support
services relate to the Japanese operations included in the Magnetics Division sale. At the sale date, the incremental
cost of this administrative support obligation was considered in the determination of the fiscal 1999 gain on sale.
Such determination was based on the fact that we had other Japan-based operations for COM and other business
lines. In the third quarter of fiscal 2000, as part of the corporate reorganization, we elected to close our Japan-based
operations, thereby increasing the remaining costs associated with the administrative obligations. This resulted in a
charge of $1.6 million being recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2000. During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, we

A-22




determined that the collectability of the note receivable, with a carrying value of $2.7 million, was impaired and
wrote-off the $2.7 million note.

NOTE 10.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires disclosure of fair value
information for certain financial instruments. The carrying amounts for trade and other receivables and payables are
considered to be their fair values. The carrying amounts, net of unamortized discounts and premiums, and fair values
of the Company's other financial instruments at September 30, 2002 and 2001, are as follows:

September 30, 2002 September 30, 2001
Carrying Carrying
(dollars in thousands) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility .................. $ 29,975 $ 29,975 $ 55,075 $ 55,075
10-7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes .....c...ccovvvvvnennn.. $ --- $ --- $ 310,943 $ 55,800

The Septermber 30, 2001 estimated fair values of Senior Subordinated Notes were based on quoted market values.

NOTE 11.
HEDGING:

Anacomp is exposed to the risk of future currency exchange rate fluctuations. To mitigate a portion of this risk, we
have in the past entered into various foreign currency swap agreements that were designated as, and were effective
as, economic hedges of net investments of certain foreign subsidiaries. In accordance with SFAS No. 52 “Foreign
Currency Translation”, realized and unrealized gains and losses, including terminations and maturities of swaps, are
reflected in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss”. Foreign currency swaps are marked to market at each
reporting period based on movements in the exchange rates of the underlying currencies. In November 2000, the
Company terminated its only remaining currency swap agreement and received $0.8 million in cash proceeds. This
benefit is reflected in the 2001 Consolidated Balance Sheet as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive
loss” in “Stockholders' equity (deficit)”. At September 30, 2002, the Company did not have any currency swap
agreements outstanding.

NOTE 12.
SUPPLIER CONCENTRATION RISK:

Intelicoat Technologies Agreement

Anacomp has a supply agreement with Intelicoat Technologies that expires October 1, 2004. Pursuant to the supply
agreement, Anacomp can purchase coated duplicate microfilm from Intelicoat at fixed prices for a one year period,
which can be modified as defined in the agreement in future years. The supply agreement has no minimum purchase
requirements. During fiscal 2002, we obtained all of our duplicate microfilm from Intelicoat.

Kodak Agreement

We obtain our silver halide film used to produce master images principally from the Eastman Kodak Company under
an multi-year supply agreement. The supply agreement has no minimum purchase requirements.
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NOTE 13,

COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENT CAPTIONS:

(dotlars in thousands)
Accounts Receivable:

Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

of $2,693 and $4,538, respectively ......
Other .o e

Inventories:

................................

Finished goods, including purchased film............cccovennnnne.

WOTK N PrOCESS .vovveevieeirraireceinrerranreencanne
Consumable spare parts and supplies......

Property and Equipment:

Buildings .....cccooveevviveminiieencrniaieeannae
Office furnifure........cooeeivmmreerenoneoeenens
Field support spare parts .............c.ccoeee.
Leasehold improvements.......c..o..eoevvennns

Processing and manufacturing equipment.............o.coceeviveenene.

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization.................

Excess of Purchase Price Over Net Assets of Businesses

Acquired:

GoodWill.......ccovvvvviiciiiiieie e,
Less accumulated amortization ..............

Cash Surrender Values Included in Other Assets:

Cash surrender values in life insurance policies ........c.cccoervinec.

Loans against cash surrender values..........

Net cash surrender values in Other Assets

Face amounts of life insurance policies.....

Other Accrued Liabilities:

Deferred revenues ........cccovoveevccvvrnnicrnennns
Sales tax and VAT liability......c..ccocvrenne,
Restructuring réServes.........vevveeviveeereeen,
EPA Habilities ......ccovecerreerrninrcereeeirnrcrenens

A-24

Reorganized
Company

September 39,
2002

$ 33,423
567

$ 33,990

$ 1,766

1,708

$ 3,474

$
6,087
6,244
7,080
18,152

37,563
(16,115)

$ 21,448

3 1,395

$ 7,117

Predecessor
Compamny

September 30, 2001

$ 42,843
517

$ 43,360

$ 4,848
26
63
$ 4,937

$ 4,568
11,896
6,045
10,198
44,275
76,982
(43,841)

$ 33,141

$ 159,044
(72,759)

$ 86,285

$ 26429

(25,710)
s

A

54,407

3 7,948
2,551
1,660
1,243
9,520

$ 22922




NOTE 14.
LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES:

Reorganized Predecessor
(dollars in thousands) Company Company
Long-term receivables: September 30, September 30,

2002 2001
Lease contracts receivable ..o $ 2493 $ 2,558
L0311 QOO O OSSO U TP PRT RPN 89
2,493 2,647

LesS CUTENE POTLIOI ..coviviiiiier ittt cre et e e (1,305) (1,395)

$ 1,188 $ 1252

Lease contracts receivable result from customer leases of products under agreements that qualify as sales-type leases.
Annual future lease payments to be received under sales-type leases are as follows:

Year Ended
(dollars in thousands) September 30,
2003 . $ 1,459
2004 ... 838
2005 281
2006, . i 112
2007 e 62
2,752
Less deferred interest.........c.cccoeevviivinnenn (259)
$ 2,493
NOTE 15.
RETIREMENT PLANS:

Defined Contribution Plans

Anacomp has a retirement savings plan for its U.S. employees that qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Participating employees may contribute up to 15% of their pretax salary, but not more than statutory
limits. Anacomp may contribute, at its discretion, up to fifty cents for each dollar a participant contributes, with a
maximum contribution of 3% of a participant’s earnings. Company expense for matching contributions was $1.0
million, $0.3 million, and $0.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002, the three months ended
December 31, 2001, and the year ended 2001, respectively. No company matching contribution expense was
incurred in fiscal year 2000.

Certain of our non-U.S. subsidiaries have retirement plans that cover substantially all regular employees, for which
we deposit funds under various fiduciary-type arrangements. Company contributions are generally based on years of
service as well as on the employee’s level of compensation. The ranges of assumptions that are used for these
contributions reflect the different economic environments and statutory requirements within the various countries.
Company expense for contributions to the non-U.S. plans was $1.2 million, $0.4 million, $1.5 million, and $1.6
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002, for the three months ended December 31, 2001, and for the
fiscal years 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans

We have a retirement plan in place for our United Kingdom subsidiary that qualifies as a defined benefit plan. The
plan provides benefits based primarily on years of service and employee compensation levels. The plan covers
approximately 619 participants, including 89 current employees, 484 former employees with vested rights to future
benefits, and 46 retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits. Funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts
sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws plus additional
amounts as we may determine to be appropriate.
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Funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements as set forth in
employee benefit and tax laws plus additional amounts as Anacomp may determine to be appropriate.

Plan assets are held in trust and consist primarily of equity securities. Anacomp common stock was not a material
component of the plan assets during any of the periods presented. Anacomp recorded assets and liabilities for the
plans as follows: :

As of September 30, 2002, the UK pension plan is under funded by $6.2 million (using September 30, 2002 currency
exchange rates) based upon a projected benefit obligation of $21.5 million, accumulated benefit obligation of $19.3
million and the fair value of plan assets totaled $13.1 million. The under funded liability of $6.2 million is classified
as a long term liability on the September 30, 2002, Consolidated Balance Sheet. These actuarial projections were
prepared assuming a discount rate of 6.25%, a weighted average expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of
7.5% per year and weighted average annual compensation increases of 4%.

Changes in the projected benefit obligation for the plans are as follows:
Fiscal Year

(in thousands) 2002

Beginning balance $ 17,696
Service cost for benefits earned 347
Participant contributions 156
Interest cost 845
Actuarial gains (losses) 1,313
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 1,451
Benefits paid (336)
Ending balance ‘ 5 21472

Changes in the fair value of assets for the plans are as follows:
Fiscal Year

(in thousands) 2002

Beginning balance 3 15,119
Actual return on plan assets (3,177)
Employer contributions 361
Participant contributions 156
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 1,238
Benefits paid (336)
Ending balance $ 13,361

Plan assets are held in trust and consist primarily of equity securities. Anacomp common stock was not a material
component of the plan assets during any of the periods presented.

NOTE 16.
CAPITAL STOCK:

Bankruptcy Reorganization

Class A and Class B Cominon Shares

We are authorized to issue up to 40,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and 787,711 shares of Class B
Common Stock. Each share of Class A and Class B Common Stock is identical, including voting rights, dividends,

when and if declared, and liquidation rights, subject to any preference of preferred stock as may be issued in the
future.
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Preferred Stock

QOur Board of Directors has the ability, at its discretion, to create one or more series of Preferred Stock and to
determine each such series' preferences, limitations, and relative voting and other rights. We are authorized to issue
up to 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, as established during our financial restructuring and reorganization (see
Note 1). As of September 30, 2002, we have not issued any preferred stock.

Common Stock Repurchase Program

In February 1999, the Board of Directors authorized repurchases of up to two percent of the Company's outstanding
shares of common stock per quarter. Shares may be purchased on the open market from time to time and at such
prices as management may determune, based on current prices and market conditions, subject to compliance with our
credit agreements. During fiscal 2000, we repurchased 93,200 shares of our common stock. On February 8, 2000,
we terminated the stock repurchase program.

Warrants
As of September 30, 2002, we had 783,077 warrants outstanding to purchase common stock at an exercise price of

$61.54 per share. These warrants were authorized and issued in connection with our financial restructuring and
reorganization (see Note 1).

NOTE 17.
STOCK PLANS:

Under the Plan of Reorganization all prior stock option plans were canceled.

Under the Reorganization Plan effective December 31, 2001, the board of directors reserved 403,403 Class A
Anacomp shares for issuance to employees of the company or its subsidiaries as incentive compensation.

In fiscal year 2002, we awarded 210,000 options to employees to purchase shares at a price of $26.00 per share.

The following table summarizes transactions under the Company’s stock option plans for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002 and all options outstanding and exercisable by price range as of September 30, 2002:

2002
Weighted-Average
Weighted-Average Remaining
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Life
QOutstanding on January 1,............ - 3 - -
Granted ..o, 210,000 26.00 9.84
Canceled .......oocovviiieiieiicie ---
Exercised ........cccoooviiiiininnn, —
QOutstanding on September 30, ..... 210,000 $  26.00 984

We account for our employee stock option plans in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, under which compensation
expense is recognized only to the extent the exercise price of the option is less than the fair market value of a share of
stock at the date of grant. Accordingly, we have adopted the disclosure only requirements of SFAS No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock Based Compensation." Had employee compensation costs for these plans been determined
based on their fair value on their grant date in accordance with SFAS No. 123, our net results would have been as
follows:
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Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
Nine Months Three Months  Twelve Months Twelve Menths
Ended Ended Ended Ended

September 30, December 31, September 30, September 38,
(doliars in thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Net income (loss) as reported ........cccvverircrrernnee § (2,312) $ 277,360 $ (47,491) $(111,434)
Pro forma net 1SS ......c.ocovevenererccnniinecnenn, (2,445) 277,360 (48,431) (115,363)
Net loss per share as reported........ccoovenrnnee (0.57)
Pro forma net loss per share............cccocevvvrnnennee. (0.61)

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2002 and 2000 (no options were granted in 2001), as well
as the weighted average assumptions used to determine the fair values, are summarized below:

2002 2000
Fair Value of Options Granted ..........c.cvcrvcrenconnennen $ 9.05 $ 15.05
Risk-Free Interest Rate .......ccoecvcnirvcrenrinniniceieeeinnns 3.32% 5.36%
Expected Dividend Yield........cccoveirernrnncncie e 0% 0%
Expected Volatility .......cccoooveveeenciieininnncncreeeneenn. 0.33% 113%
Expected Life.....coocveviirmmer e S Years 10 Years
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NOTE 18.
INCOME TAXES:

The components of income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and extraordinary items were:

Reorganized I
Company Predecessor Company
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months  Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
. September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
United STUES....vvorreeecoecerereessee oo $  (1,947) $ 11363 S (44,041) $ (94,676)
FOTEIgN...covoevvvveveiesceecee e, 2,746 1,118 (233) (13,572)
h) 799 $ 12,481 § (44,274) $ (108,248)
U

The components of the consolidated tax provision after
summarized below:

utilization of net operating loss carryforwards are

Reorganized i
Company Predecessor Company
Nine Months Three Months  Twelve Months  Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
. September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Current: |
Federal...........cccoooiiviiviieicee e, $ 636 $ - 3 - 5
Foreign ... 1,543 440 3,177 1,490
SEAE..oveovee e, 150 10 40 60
2,329 | 450 3,217 1,550
Deferred:
3 1,994 |
$ 4,323 L 5 450 $ 3,217 $ 1,550

The income tax provision is included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as follows:

Reorganized N
Company 1 Predecessor Company
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months  Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
; September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Provision for income taxes before
discontinued operations................cooe..n. $ 4,024 $ 450 $ 3,217 i) 1,550
Discontinued operations................cceveenn. 299 --- --- -
3 4323 | $ 450 3 3217 $ 1,550
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The following is a reconciliation of income taxes from continuing operations calculated at the United States federal
statutory rate to the provision for income taxes:

Reorganized
Company Predecessor Company
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months  Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
) September 30, December 31, September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2001 2000
Benefit for income taxes at U.S.
SEAMUEOTY TRIE vvevevvviverieieeee s ener s enene 3 280 $ 4,368 $ (15,496) $ (37,886)
Reorganization iemms ........coovevereinecinne --- (4,665) --- ---
Life insurance ...........ccococvovvrviieeiverenronnas 2,590 - --- .-
U.S. tax on dividends from foreign
SUBbSIAIATIES ...vcvveieiereeeee e 3,157 - -— ---
Foreign tax credits generated .................. (4,940) --- - -
Nondeductible amortization and write-
off of intangible assets...........coovveriiinnn. - - 12,800
State and foreign income taxes................ 1,113 450 (813) 6,300
Increase in deferred tax asset valuation
AllOWANCE ..o e 1,771 297 18,600 18,500
OthET ..o etesr e 53 926 1,836
$ 4,024 $ 450 $ 3217 $ 1,550
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
Reorganized Predecessor
Company Company
September 30, September 30,
(dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Tax effects of future temporary differences related to:
Accrued expenses and reserves........covevvrrvereccrcenn $ 9,023 $ 9,600
Depreciation and amortization.............cc.cocevevvienrnennnee 32,104 4,300
OUBET oottt en s serenen --- 10,400
Net tax effects of future differences .........coovvveverierinrunns 41,127 24,300
Tax effects of carryforward benefits:
Federal net operating loss carryforwards...........ccc..... -- 87,200
Federal tax credits.........coccvevvniiieeiee i ceeescis e - 1,200
FOreign tax CTedits .....vv.vvvurrrrerecrinrecrniernrecsnmnencsecennans 2,139 -
Tax effects of carryforwards ............c.co.coveverereererenrnennnns 2,139 88,400
Tax effects of future taxable differences and
carryforward benefits.........c.ococeievnieireccnninnicnc 43,266 112,700
Less valuation aloOWance ..........ccoocvevveeveevseseieeseeniens (43,266) (112,700)
Net deferred tax asSel.....ccccrvreeieiiiiinneeniiiieecniene e $ - 5 —

As of December 31, 2001, we had deferred tax assets totaling approximately $43.5 million, which were fully offset
by a valuation allowance. Such deferred tax assets are comprised primarily of temporary differences related to U.S.
federal and certain state tax deductions.

The tax benefits of pre-reorganization deferred tax assets will be reported first as a reduction of the Reorganization
Asset and then as a credit to equity. These tax benefits will not reduce income tax expense for financial reporting
purposes, although such assets when recognized or amortized as an expense for tax return purposes may reduce U.S,
federal and certain state taxable income if any, and therefore reduce the income tax payable. During the period
ended September 30, 2002, approximately $2 million of pre-reorganization net deferred tax assets were utilized as
deductions for tax return purposes and, therefore, were reported as a reduction of the reorganization asset. The
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income tax provision of $4.3 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2002, may appear disproportionate to
pretax income of $0.8 million. The $2 million noted above is the primary cause for this and does not result in taxes
payable.

On October 19, 2001, the Company filed a voluntary petition under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code. Under the terms of the plan of reorganization, the Company has cancellation of debt (“COD”). As a result,
the Company is required to reduce, for federal income tax purposes, certain tax attributes, including net operating
loss carryforwards, tax credit carryforwards, and property basis, by the amount of the COD. In general, the amount
of attribute reduction is equal to the excess of the debt discharged in bankruptcy over the fair market value of the
stock issued in the reorganization.

Additionally, the Company experienced an ownership change under section 382 as a result of the reorganization,
which will limit the Company’s ability to utilize certain tax attributes and possibly certain built-in losses recognized
within a five year period.

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately $21.3 million at
September 30, 2002. Those earnings are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, no provision for
U.S. federal and state income taxes has been provided thereon. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of
dividends or otherwise, we would be subject to both U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax
credits) and withholding taxes payable to the various foreign countries. Determination of the amount of
unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability is not practicable because of the amount of the complexities
associated with its hypothetical calculation; however, unrecognized foreign tax credit carryforwards would be
available to reduce some portion of the U.S. liability.

NOTE 19.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Lease Commitments

Anacomp has commitments under long-term operating leases, principally for building space and data service center
equipment expiring at various dates through May 2011. The following summarizes the future minimum lease
payments under all noncancelable operating lease obligations that extend beyond one year:

Lease Sublease
(dollars in thousands) Payments Income
Year Ended September 20,
2003 . s § 10,897 3 885
2004 ... s 8,951 765
2005 e s 7,437 731
2000 e 6,680 745
2007 oo 5,530 759
Thereafter. ..o 17,500 2,046

$ 56,995 § 5931

The Company’s rent and Jease expense was $9.8 million, $3.3 million, $13.9 million and $17.1 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2002, the three months ended December 31, 2001, and the years ended September 30,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

Environmental Liability

Xidex Corporation, a predecessor company of Anacomp, was designated by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency ("EPA") as a potentially responsible party for investigatory and cleanup costs incurred by state
and federal authorities involving locations included on a list of EPA's priority sites for investigation and remedial
action under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act. At September
30, 2002, we have an estimated EPA liability for cleanup costs for the aforementioned locations and other sites
totaling $1.2 million. During fiscal 2001, we recorded a $1.0 million reduction to our EPA liability previously
estimated and accrued upon release from certain further clean-up activity. In the opinion of management, no
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material losses are expected in excess of the liability recorded. We have reclassified the liability to long term in the
current balance sheet presentation.

Legal Matters

On August 29, 1997, Access Solutions International, Inc. (“ASI”) filed a complaint for patent infringement in the
U.S. District Court, District of Rhode Island against Data/Ware, of which Anacomp is the successor by merger, and
the Eastman Kodak Company. On April 20, 2001, management settled this matter through the execution of an
agreement, the terms of which are confidential, among Anacomp, ASI and other parties. The Company recorded a
$5.4 million charge related to this matter in the second quarter of fiscal 2001 that is included in selling, general and
administrative expense for the year ended September 30, 2001.

Anacomp is also involved in various claims and lawsuits incidental to its business and management believes that the
outcome of those matters individually, and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on its
consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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NOTE 20.
INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS:

Anacomp's international operations are conducted principally through subsidiaries, a substantial portion of whose
Total international sales include sales by subsidiaries and through

operations are located in Western Europe.

distributors. Information as to U.S. and international operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2002, the
three months ended December 31, 2001, and the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 is as follows (dollars in

thousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 (Resrganized company)

U.s. International Elimination Consolidated
Customer $ales .........ooovvevvreeeriiennenn, 3 128,008 $ 45,799 $ - $ 173,807
Inter-geographic..........cooeerionieninnas 1,215 - (1,215) -
Total sales ..o, 3 129,223 3 45,799 3 (1,215) § 173,807
Operating income from
CONMINWING OPErations..........ovevvveee. $ 839 $ 2,380 - $ 3,219
Long-lived assets.......ccc.occveeraernnnn, $ 103,589 $ 5,000 —— $ 108,589
Three Months Ended December 31, 2001 (Predecesser company)
U.s. International Elimination Consolidated
Customer sales ........cocveveriivrneinn. $ 45,807 $ 22,217 $ - $ 68,024
Inter-geographic..........cooccevirnerevenns 763 --- (763) ---
Total 8aleS ......ovvveverrierciiecrr e $ 46,570 3 22217 3 (763) 3 68,024
Operating income from
continuing operations....................... $ 990 $ 1,343 - $ 2,333
Long-lived assets..........cooovveeeeienrnnns $ 113,787 $ 10,390 --- h) 124,177
Year Ended September 30, 2001 (Predecessor company)
U.s. International Elimination Consolidated
Customer Sales ...o.ovvuiveereineiinenen. $ 214,668 $ 91,680 $ --- $ 306,348
Inter-geographiC............c.occvevrvivrernnn. 3,903 --- (3,903) -
Total 5ales ......vvrveveeervceeeeien, $ 218,571 $ 91,680 $ (3,903) $ 306,348
Operating loss from
continuing Operations..................... $ (1,194) $ {427) - $ (1621)
Long-lived assets...........oeoovicerieennnn, $ 117,416 3 9,087 - $ 126,503
Year Ended September 30, 2000 {Predecessor company)
U.s. International Elimination Consolidated
Customer sales .......c.ocooeeveeceriennnnn, $ 268,312 $ 114,885 $ - $ 383,197
Inter-geographic.........coccvrverevininnn, 8,353 --- (8,353) -
Total sales......ccoovevvcvnecncicein, $ 276,665 $ 114,385 $ (8,353) $ 383,197
Operating loss from
CONtNUING OPETAONS .......vvoorvreven.e $ (54,076 $  (13,572) - $ (67,648)
Long-lived assets .....c.c..coceevirireennnns $ 141,310 $ 11,537 - $ 152,847
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NOTE 21.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUBDITED):

Sumimnary Results of Operations:

(doliars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal 2002

Revenues..........cccccccoccciviiiiii

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Net income (loss)
Basic and diluted per share data:

Net income (loss)

Fiscal 2001 (Predecessor company)
Revenues .......cccocoovivieeiivnen.

Gross margin

Loss from continuing operations

Summary ef Significant Charges:

Fiscal 2002

Restructuring (credit) charge

Fiscal 2001
Legal settlement charge
Environmental reserve credit
Restructuning credit

Rirst Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Predecessor
Company Reorganized Company
$ 68,024 $ 60,607 3 56,534 § 56,666
21,520 20,152 17,517 18,045
12,031 285 (481) (3,029)
§ 277,360 $ 903 $ 7 § (3,222)
$ 023 $ 0.00 $  (0.80)
$ 82,141 § 80,202 $ 73,028 $ 70,977
28,181 26,775 22,622 22,042
(7,676) (15,707) (12,753) (11,355)
$ (7,676) $ (15,707) $ (12,753) $ (11,355)
$ (1,032) $ $ 2,081 §
$ $ 5377 $ - 3
$ $ $ (1,012 §
$ $ - $ (27 8
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NOTE 22.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES:

The following is a summary of activity in the Company's valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves for the years
ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Charges
Balance at (credits) to Balance at
beginning of costs and end of
period expenses Deductions period
(dollars in thousands)
Nine months ended September 30, 2002 (Reorganized Company)
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........ $ 4,628 (16) (1,919) § 2,693
Three months ended December 31, 2001 (Predecessor Company)
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........ $ 4538 123 (33) % 4,628
Year ended September 30, 2001 (Predecessor Company)
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........ $ 4922 163 (547) § 4538
Year ended September 30, 2000 (Predecessor Company)
Allowance for doubtful accounts ........ § 5815 (195) (698) § 4,922
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Stock and Warrant Listings

Anacomp, Inc. common stock and warrants for common stock are traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board of the
Nasdaq Stock Market. The Class A common stock ticker symbol is OTCBB: ANCPA, Class B is OTCBB:ANCPB. The
warrant ticker symbol is OTCBB: ANCPW.

Transfer Agent

Investors wishing to change the name, address or ownership of stock or warrants, to report lost certificates, or to
consolidate accounts should contact:

Mellon Shareholder Services, LLC
P.O. Box 3315

South Hackensack, New Jersey 07606
(800) 851-9677

http://melion.com

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Tuesday, February 25, 2003, at the Company’s offices located at
15378 Avenue of Science, San Diego, California. Formal notice of the meeting, together with the proxy statement and
form of proxy, is mailed to each holder of common stock.

Company Contacts and Requests for Information

Requests for additional copies of the Anacomp, Inc. 2002 Annual Report and Form 10-K or other shareholder/analyst
information should be directed to:

Anacomp, Inc.

Deb Troyer — Investor Relations
15378 Avenue of Science

San Diego, CA 92128

(800) 350-3044
dtroyer@anacomp.com

All media requests should be directed to:

Anacomp, Inc.

Kimberly Kasitz, Director of Marketing Communications
15378 Avenue of Science

San Diego, CA 92128

(858) 716-3468

kkasitz@anacomp.com

Information on Anacomp, Inc. may also be accessed electronically on the Internet.
Anacomp’s World Wide Web address is http://www.anacomp.com
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